
 
 

(Established pursuant to section 103 of the Local Democracy, Economic Development  
and Construction Act 2009 as the Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton  

and Wirral Combined Authority) 

 
MEETING OF THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION 

COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 

 
 
To: The Members of the Liverpool City Region 
 Combined Authority 
 
 
 
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are requested to attend the Budget meeting of the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority to be held on Friday, 1st February, 2019 at 1.00pm in the 

Authority Chamber - No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this meeting, please contact Trudy Bedford 
on telephone number (0151) 330 1330. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Head of Paid Service 
 
 



 

 

LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

   

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

   

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LCR COMBINED AUTHORITY 
HELD ON 11 JANUARY 2019  

  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

4. MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BUDGET SETTING REPORT 
2019/20  

 To consider the report of the Director of Corporate Services.  

  (Pages 13 - 62) 
 

5. TRANSFORMING CITIES FUND: APPROVAL TO RELEASE UP TO 
£500,000 OF DEVELOPMENT FUNDING  

 To consider the report of the Director of Commercial Development and 
Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality.  

  (Pages 63 - 70) 
 

GOVERNANCE 
 

6. DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDER APPOINTMENT  

 To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer.  

  (Pages 71 - 72) 

7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

 Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask questions which 
have been submitted in accordance with Meetings Standing Orders No. 
11. A period of 30 minutes will be allocated for this item. Copies of valid 
questions will be circulated at the meeting. 
 
Members of the public who wish to submit questions are asked to contact 
Democratic Services either by: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0151 330 1330 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, PO Box 1976, No. 1 Mann 
Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


 

 

 
A proforma will be supplied for the submission of public questions which 
for this meeting must be returned by 5.00pm on Monday 28 January 2019. 

   

8. PETITIONS AND STATEMENTS  

 Members of the public who wish to submit a single position or statement in 
accordance with Meetings Standing Orders No. 11 are asked to contact 
Democratic Services either by: 
 
Email: democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0151 330 1330 
In writing: Democratic Services, Merseytravel, PO Box 1976, No. 1 Mann 
Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP. 
 
The single petition or statement for this meeting must be returned by 
5.00pm on Monday 28 January 2019.  

   

9. MINUTES OF THE TRANSPORT COMMITTEE HELD ON 10 JANUARY 
2019  

  (Pages 73 - 80) 
 

 

mailto:democratic.services@merseytravel.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 

PUBLICATION: 11 JANUARY 2019 
 
DEADLINE FOR CALL-IN: 18 JANUARY 2019 
 
FOLLOWING THE CALL-IN PERIOD, DECISIONS INCLUDED IN THESE 
MINUTES MAY THEN BE IMPLEMENTED WHERE THEY HAVE NOT BEEN 
SUBJECT TO A CALL-IN. 
 
* DENOTES KEY DECISION 

 
 

At a meeting of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority held in 
the Authority Chamber - No.1 Mann Island, Liverpool, L3 1BP on Friday, 11th 
January, 2019 the following Members were 
 

P r e s e n t: 
 

Metro Mayor S Rotheram 
Chairperson of the Combined Authority 

(in the Chair) 
 
Mr A Hamid MBE, Councillor D Long, Councillor P Davies, Councillor I Maher, 
Councillor G Morgan, Councillor M Wharton (Substitute Member for Councillor 
R Polhill), Councillor W Simon (Substitute Member for Mayor J Anderson 
OBE) and Councillor L Robinson. 

 

Deputy Portfolio Holders in attendance  
 
Councillor N Nicholas: Transport and Air Quality  
Councillor S Powell: Culture, Tourism and Visitor Economy 
Councillor L Robertson-Collins: Education, Employment, Apprenticeships and 
Skills  
Councillor G Wood: Energy and Renewables  
Councillor C Thomas: Policy Resources Strategy & Delivery  
 
Mayoral Advisors in attendance  
 
Professor Dame Janet Beer: Further Education  
Reverend Canon Dr. Ellen Loudon: Community and Voluntary Sector  
Gideon Ben-Tovim OBE: Natural Environment  
Barbara Spicer: Social Housing Growth  
Lynn Collins: Chair of Fairness and Social Justice Advisory Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



121. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Mayor J Anderson 
OBE, Councillor R Polhill, Rt Hon J Kennedy (Portfolio Holder: Criminal 
Justice), Councillor I Moran (Associate Member, West Lancashire Borough 
Council), Councillor T O‟Neill (Associate Member, Warrington Borough 
Council), Councillor T Hardy (Deputy Portfolio Holder: Housing and Spatial 
Planning), Councillor P Sinnott (Deputy Portfolio Holder: Public Service 
Reform & Further Devolution), Councillor E Spurrell (Deputy Portfolio Holder: 
Criminal Justice), Luciana Berger MP (Mayoral Advisor: Mental Health), Kate 
Farrell (Mayoral Advisor: Homelessness) and Sara Wilde-McKeown (Mayoral 
Advisor: Visitor Economy).  
 
122. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 It was reported that no declarations of interest had been received.  
 
123. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LCR COMBINED AUTHORITY HELD 

ON 14 DECEMBER 2018  
 
 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2018 be 
approved as a correct record.  
 
124. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION METRO MAYOR ANNOUNCEMENTS AND 

UPDATES  
 
 Metro Mayor S Rotheram provided the LCR Combined Authority with a 
summary of some of the key activities he had undertaken in recent weeks.  
 
 The Metro Mayor expressed his concern following the recent announcement 
from Jaguar Land Rover regarding further job losses. He reported that Jaguar Land 
Rover where one of the biggest employers in the City Region and a vital source of 
high-quality, high-skilled employment. He advised that along with Councillor G 
Morgan, Leader of Knowsley MBC, they had met with both management and workers 
at the Halewood plant to discuss the current situation.  
 
 The Metro Mayor explained that the Halewood plant had a number of 
fundamental strengths, however, there were a number of strategic economic reasons 
for the company‟s currently challenges, which ranged from a slump in diesel sales, to 
the US-China trade war and the ongoing uncertainty surrounding Brexit. He went on 
to explain that the Combined Authority‟s role in addressing these issues was limited, 
however, he had offered the full assistance and support of the Combined Authority 
and Knowsley MBC to support the company and its workers during this difficult time. 
The Metro Mayor went on to highlight how the latest news from Jaguar Land Rover 
underlined the importance of avoiding a no-deal Brexit. 
 
 The Metro Mayor reported that both Councillor Morgan and he had been 
asked by the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy, Gregg 
Clark MP, to represent the City Region on a national task force to consider the 
support the national government could provide to Jaguar Land Rover. The Metro 
Mayor also reported that Councillor P Davies and Mayor J Anderson OBE would be 
working with the key stakeholders to support Cammell Laird over the coming months.  
 

Page 2



 The Metro Mayor reflected upon the continued chaos and misery which 
passengers on Northern Rail had experienced during 2018, which had been 
exacerbated by the recent fare increase of 3.2%. He reported that he had recently 
met with the Chief Executives of both Northern Rail and Network Rail along with a 
delegation of local MP‟s to express concerns regarding their promise of incremental 
change during 2019, which was unacceptable.  
 
 The Metro Mayor highlighted how the chaos on Northern trains had caused 
huge damage to the economy of the north and to people who rely on railway travel. 
He also explained how he had made it clear to the management of Northern trains 
that if they do no improve their performance then he would be putting pressure on the 
Government to remove the franchise and he had also reiterated this point to 
Transport for the North, as had Councillor L Robinson, Portfolio Holder for Transport 
and Air Quality.  
 
 In conclusion, the Metro Mayor referred to his recent visit to the new Royal 
Liverpool Hospital, where he was accompanied by Dame Louise Ellman MP. He paid 
tribute to the work of Mayor J Anderson OBE and other politician‟s from across the 
political spectrum who had persuaded central Government to identify an alternative 
funding stream, following the collapse of Carillon. He emphasised how the 
development of a new hospital could improve the health and wellbeing of residents 
across the City Region. He paid tribute to the staff working at the Royal Liverpool 
hospital, who were working in some terrible conditions.   
   
 
125. PORTFOLIO HOLDER UPDATE FOR EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT, 

APPRENTICESHIPS AND SKILLS  
 

 Councillor I Maher, Portfolio Holder: Education, Employment, 
Apprenticeships and Skills provided a presentation to members of the LCR 
Combined which set out the following:- 
 

 Highlighted that the programme to improve skills and access to 
work for residents across the City Region was ambitious and would 
support the growth of the City Region‟s economy. 

 

 Reported the Devolution Agreement had identified a number of key 
aspects, such as Devolution of the Adult Education Budget, joint 
work on Apprenticeships and Careers and the co-commissioning of 
Work and Health programmes. All of which were being progressed.  

 

 Summarised the actions arising from the Corporate Plan and 
brought Members attention to the work of the Apprenticeship 
programme. In particular emphasising why a successful 
apprenticeship programme was important for the City Region, to 
ensure that there was sufficient learning and skills opportunities to 
support a modern workplace and access to employment.  

 

 Explained that there were less apprenticeship commencing across 
all sectors in the City Region since the introduction of the funding 
reforms in April 2017. However, a number of actions were being 
implemented to improve the number of apprenticeship starts, which 

Page 3



included with the introduction of travel discount for 19-24 year olds 
and college and training providers developing new curricula.  

 

 Highlighted how discussions continued with Central Government to 
introduce flexibilities on funding for the Apprenticeship Levy and 
advised that to support access to Apprenticeships in the City 
Region an Application Portal would be launched in March 2019 and 
a Graduation Ceremony would also be held in March to celebrate 
achievements as part of National Apprenticeships Week.  

 

 Provided an update on the progress of the devolution of the Adult 
Education Budget which would be devolved to the City Region from 
1 August 2019 and be approximately £52 million. The funding 
would support a more responsive and flexible skills system for 
adults and seek to meet the needs of local priorities as identified in 
the Skills Strategy.  

 

 The Households into Work programme was supporting households, 
rather than individuals, into work and focused on those who had 
complex barriers preventing them from accessing employment 
opportunities.  

 

 Skills for Growth Action Plans had been developed to communicate 
the future skills requirements across a number of sectors. The 
Plans had been developed with key stakeholders such as 
employers and the LEP Sector Boards and Panels. The Plans 
would be reviewed by the Employment and Skills Board to ensure 
the completion of the actions.  

 

 Careers provision across the City Region was fragmented along 
with a high number of providers involved trying to provide advice 
and guidance. However, there was continued work to be 
undertaken with schools to address this fragmentation. 
Engagement with Central Government was ongoing to encourage 
the devolution of careers information.  

 

 Emphasised the importance of providing informative careers 
information to young people which was reflective of the current and 
future job opportunities. However, for careers information to be 
meaningful, consistent and to avoid the duplication of provision, 
lobbying of the National Schools Commissioner would be 
undertaken to ensure that guidance and advice was being 
delivered in schools.    

 

 Reflected upon the overall unemployment figures across the City 
Region which highlighted that in activity levels are significantly 
higher than the national average, the in activity gap was not closing 
and it wasn‟t a generational issue and mental health issues were 
increasingly prevalent.  

 

Page 4



 Summarised the next steps which included hosting the discussions 
in the City Region with Government in relation to the impact of 
apprenticeships locally and continuing to discuss with Government 
the issues relating to the Apprenticeship levy and sharing the 
evidence gained from employers. 

 
Councillor L Robertson-Collins, Deputy Portfolio Holder: Education, 

Employment, Apprenticeships and Skills welcomed the positive presentation. 
She expressed her concern regarding the reduction in the number of 
Apprenticeship starts in the City Region and attributed this in part to a 
reduction in investment across local government. She also sought clarity on 
how the Combined Authority could influence careers provision.  
 

Councillor I Maher, reported that the development of school curriculum 
was beyond the influence of the Combined Authority and remained within the 
purview of Central Government. However, until the Combined Authority was 
able to influence the school curriculum there would continue to be an 
emphasis on the academic route which was not suited to all students. He 
expressed the importance of a fundamental change in the operation of 
workplace experience to one which was on an equal footing to that of the 
academic option.  
 

Councillor P Davies, reflected upon the ineffective operation of the 
Apprenticeship Levy. He highlighted that the Levy should be creating a parity 
of esteem between the vocational and academic route, however, in reality this 
was not being achieved due to the complexity surrounding the operation of 
the Levy and it was not being used to its full potential by employers. He 
further highlighted that Government continued to refuse to listen to the 
experiences of employers, who were trying to utilise the Apprenticeship Levy, 
and as such was impinging upon the ability to deliver the skills agenda across 
the City Region. He requested that Government continue to be lobbied to 
review the operation of the Levy otherwise the Levy would remain unspent 
and not support the skills of the residents of the City Region.  
 

Mr A Hamid MBE, reported that lobbying of central government on the 
matter of the Apprenticeship levy continued and further devolution 
surrounding its operation would be welcomed. He highlighted that there was 
currently a significant underspend of the levy across the City Region and the 
North West and a collective approach with neighbouring areas should be 
considered to look to address the matter. He set out the importance of 
ensuring that the Skills Strategy was appropriate to create an economic 
improvement for the City Region. 
 

Metro Mayor S Rotheram acknowledged that Central Government‟s 
operation of the Apprenticeship Levy was not having the desired impact 
across the City Region. Therefore, evidence was being gathered to 
demonstrate the skills shortage in the City Region and that if the Levy 
remained unallocated the skills shortage would increase.  
 

Page 5



RESOLVED – That Councillor I Maher be thanked for his informative 
presentation and the content be noted.   

 
126. STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FUND ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK  
 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of 
Commercial Development and Investment and the Portfolio Holder for 
Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation which 
sought approval of an updated Strategic Investment Fund Assurance 
Framework.  
 
 Councillor P Davies, Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic 
Development, Digital and Innovation presented the updated Strategic 
Investment Fund Assurance Framework for approval. He highlighted that the 
original Framework had been approved in 2016 and that the updated version 
reflected how the Combined Authority was now operating and discharging its 
responsibilities; secondly it updated the Combined Authorities assurance 
practices so they were consistent with the SIF Investment Strategy and finally 
it incorporated the appraisal methodologies from Central Government. In 
conclusion, Councillor P Davies, informed the Combined Authority that the 
updated Assurance Framework provided a robust document in which to 
assess SIF funding applications.  
 
 RESOLVED – That the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
approve the updated Assurance Framework.  
 

127. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION SINGLE INVESTMENT FUND - GROWING 
BUSINESS VISITS AND EVENTS (KEY DECISION)  

 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered a report of the Director of 
Commercial Development and Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Inclusive 
Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation which sought 
approval of a Full Business Case in relation to the Growing Business Visits 
and Events.  
 
 Councillor P Davies, Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic 
Development, Digital and Innovation reported that the Growing Business 
Visits and Events Full Business Case sought to provide capacity and funding 
to the City Region‟s business tourism sector. He informed Members that the 
Full Business Case sought to support staffing costs for the next three years at 
both the Liverpool and Sefton convention bureaus and to also provide funds 
for the subvention of new conferences in their convention centres.  
 
 Councillor P Davies highlighted that the programme was capable of 
generating a value of almost £11 million to the City Region. In conclusion, he 
paid tribute to the work of the LCR Local Enterprise Partnership and 
highlighted that the significant challenge in relation to this project was 
ensuring it was self-sufficient at the conclusion of the three year transitional 
fund.  
 

Page 6



 Mr A Hamid MBE, welcomed the report and stressed the importance of 
commercial models such as this which sought to reduce reliance on public 
services and which sought to attract major events to the City Region.  
 
 RESOLVED – That:- 
 

(i) the Full Business Case in relation to the Growing Business 
Visits and Events proposals be approved;  

 
(ii) the development by the Local Enterprise Partnership of a 

strategy and commercial model to sustain conference 
subvention in the Liverpool City Region be supported;  

 
(iii) a three year transitional fund to ensure subvention funds are 

available to attract international and national conferences in the 
Liverpool City Region until the strategy and commercial model is 
fully developed be supported; and  

 
(iv) the enhancement of resources of the Liverpool and Sefton 

Convention Bureau‟s by adding two full time employees on a 3 
year fixed term contracts (one FTE for each bureau), to support 
and deliver on the above proposals be supported;  

 
(v) the Single Investment Fund in the sum of a maximum revenue 

grant of £572,833 be awarded; and  
 
(vi) authority be granted to the Head of Paid Service and the 

Director of Commercial Development and Investment to 
negotiate detailed terms and conditions of the indicative heads 
of terms (“the Heads”) at Appendix 2 and the ensuing definitive 
grant funding agreements in consultation with the Combined 
Authority Monitoring Officer and Combined Authority Treasurer. 
Any material variations to the project as detailed in this report 
are to be referred back to the Combined Authority for 
consideration.  

 
128. SINGLE INVESTMENT FUND - ACCESS TO HALSNEAD GARDEN 

VILLAGE (KEY DECISION)  
 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered the report of the Director of 
Commercial Development and Investment and the Portfolio Holder: Inclusive 
Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation which sought 
approval of a Full Business Case in relation to the access to Halsnead 
Garden Village project and to award Single Investment Fund up to a 
maximum capital grant of £12,142,325, subject to the conditions contained in 
Appendix One.  
 
 Councillor P Davies, Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic 
Development, Digital and Innovation reported that Halsnead was one of the 
national sites to be awarded garden village status. He reported that in the 

Page 7



management of Knowsley Council‟s major projects team, the project had 
potential to be transformational.  
 
 Councillor G Morgan, Leader: Knowsley MBC, informed the Combined 
Authority that the funding was vital to kick-starting the exciting Halsnead 
Garden development in Knowsley. The ambition was to create a unique 
Garden Village which provided high quality housing and employment 
alongside a new country park. Halsnead would bring 1,600 high quality and 
distinctive new homes to the City Region Furthermore, the ambitious scheme 
aimed to deliver over 22 hectares of employment land for investment and 
create new jobs in the growth sectors such as Maritime and Logistics.  
 
 Councillor D Long, Leader: St Helens MBC, welcomed the report and 
reflected upon the importance of securing infrastructure to support 
developments such as this. He highlighted that due to the proximity of the site 
to St Helens he welcomed the continuing engagement between Knowsley 
MBC and St Helens MBC to discuss highways matters.  
 

RESOLVED – That:- 
 

(i) the Full Business Case in relation to the Access to Halsnead 
Garden Village project and award Single Investment Fund 
support in the sum of a maximum capital grant of £12,142,325 
subject to the conditions contained in Appendix 1 to the report 
be approved; and  

 
(ii) authority be delegated to the Head of Paid Service and the 

Director of Commercial Development and Investment to 
negotiate detailed terms of the ensuing grant funding agreement 
in consultation with the Combined Authority Monitoring Officer 
and Combined Authority Treasurer.  

  
129. ACCEPTANCE OF EU GRANT AND EXTENSIONS TO EXISTING 

PROGRAMMES (KEY DECISION)  
 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered the report of the Treasurer 
which sought approval for the LCR Combined Authority to act as the 
Accountable Body for the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 
North West Local Energy Technical assistance project and also sought 
extensions to EU programmes as detailed in Table 3 of the report now 
submitted.  
 
 Councillor P Davies, Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic 
Development, Digital and Innovation informed Members that subject to 
approval, the LCR Local Enterprise Partnership would house the ERDF Local 
Energy Technical Assistance project. He also reported that the City Region 
was one of only five regional hubs in England who would be delivering this 
project which provided a great opportunity to be innovative with local energy 
schemes and build upon the low carbon objectives for the City Region.  
 

Page 8



 Mr A Hamid MBE, Chair of the LCR Local Enterprise Partnership 
reported that this report was a strong example of the benefits which could be 
achieved through joint working between the LCR Local Enterprise Partnership 
and the Combined Authority. 
 
 RESOLVED – That:- 
 

(i) the EU grant for ERDF Local Energy Technical Assistance 
project outlined in Table 1 be formally accepted and the 
Combined Authority act as the Accountable Body for the project;  

 
(ii) the onward grant award of this money to the partner agency the 

LCR Local Enterprise Partnership as detailed in Table 2 of the 
report now submitted be agreed;  

 
(iii) the end dates of the existing EU programmes listed in Table 3 

be extended due to the receipt of additional grant funding 
available until the end of March 2022;  

 
(iv) the additional EU grant outlined in Table 4 for which the 

Combined authority will act as the Accountable Body be formally 
accepted;  

 
(v) the onward grant awards of the additional money to relevant 

partner agencies listed in Table 5 be agreed; and  
 
(vi) authority be delegated to the Combined Authority Treasurer to 

sign relevant grant funding agreement letters and agree any 
necessary amendments to these schemes during the period of 
their delivery.  

 
130. TRANSFORMING CITIES FUND: UPDATE AND PROPOSED NEXT STEPS  
 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered the report of the Director of 
Policy and Strategic Commissioning and the Portfolio Holder: Transport and 
Air Quality which provided an update on the progress of the Transforming 
Cities Fund programme.  
 
 Councillor L Robinson, Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality, 
informed Members that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority had 
been allocated £170million for the Transforming Cities Fund. The purpose of 
the Fund was to deliver investment in public and sustainable transport and to 
be delivered by 2023. Councillor Robinson reminded Members of the three 
Strategic Outline Cases which had been previously been agreed by the LCR 
Combined Authority and which had included:- 
 

 Funding for the launch of a smart ticketing portal;  

 New ticketing media as a successor to „Walrus‟; 

 Support for a new, low carbon and low emission vessel(s) to 
replace the ageing Mersey Ferries; 

Page 9



 Match funding in respect of the priority European Regional 
Development Fund Sustainable Urban Development (SUD) 
programme of green travel routes for cyclists.  

 
 Councillor Robinson further explained that four bids had been received 
which sought a share of the £500,000 development fund and they would be 
presented to a future meeting of the LCR Combined Authority for 
consideration. The projects were:- 
 

 Transforming Commuter Bus Corridors;  

 a Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network;  

 Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options; and  

 Hydrogen fuelling options study.  
 

In conclusion, Councillor Robinson highlighted that in addition to the 
above projects, consideration was being given to exploring the feasibility of 
developing a transport link between Liverpool South Parkway train station and 
John Lennon Airport, introducing digital railway technology and Urban Traffic 
Control technology across the City Region.  

 
Metro Mayor S Rotheram emphasised the importance that the Fund 

delivered innovative transport changes to the City Region. 
 
RESOLVED – That:- 
 
(i) the progress to date with the development of the first tranche of 

Transforming Cities Fund be noted;  
 
(ii) commissioned „calls‟ for the Transforming Cities Funding be 

delegated to the Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning 
in conjunction with the Lead Portfolio Member for Transport and 
Air Quality in the interests of effectives and efficiency; and  

 
(iii) further updates on future commissioning rounds and on 

emerging schemes and priorities be provided at regular 
intervals.  

 
131. LOOKING FORWARD TO YEAR OF ENVIRONMENT 2019  
 

 The LCR Combined Authority considered the report of the Director of 
Policy and Strategic Commissioning and the Portfolio Holder: Energy and 
Renewables which provided an update on the key themes and activities which 
were being co-ordinated across the Liverpool City Region, in support of the 
Year of Environment 2019.  
 
 Kirsty Pearce, Director of Policy and Strategic Commissioning, 
reported that Nature Connected was championing and steering the campaign 
at a City Region level and aligned with the clean inclusive approach of the 
Combined Authority.  
 

Page 10



 Gideon Ben-Tovim OBE, Mayoral Advisor: Natural Environment placed 
on record his thanks to the Metro Mayor for supporting Year of Environment 
2019. He reported that the programme involved a range of partners, including 
all six constituent Local Authorities, Merseytravel, Merseyside Waste 
Authority, LCR Local Enterprise Partnership and a host of environment and 
private sector bodies along with the University of Liverpool, the NHS and a 
wide range of community and voluntary sector organisations. Furthermore, he 
advised Members that a range of activities would take place during the year 
with the first being held in January 2019 which included a Forest School 
Award and referred members to www.yoe2019lcr.org.uk for further 
information. In conclusion, he welcomed the enthusiasm and commitment 
from across the City Region in support the Year of Environment 2019, which 
would be positive for the Combined Authority and its citizens.  
 
 RESOLVED – That:- 
 

(i) the Combined Authority reiterates its support for and active 
participation in the Liverpool City Region‟s Year of Environment 
2019; and  

 
(ii) updates be received during and at the conclusion of the Year of 

the Environment, on the achievements, lessons and legacies 
arising from the Year.  

 
132. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

 Members of the public were given the opportunity to submit questions 
which had been submitted in accordance with Meetings Standing Order No. 
11.  
 
 Metro Mayor S Rotheram reported that one question had been 
received from Mr T Grant. Unfortunately Mr Grant could not be in attendance 
and the Metro Mayor invited the Monitoring Officer to read the following 
question on behalf of Mr Grant.  
 
„Will the Liverpool City Region Metro Mayor follow the example of Greater 
Manchester and commit to banning fracking in the region in order to tackle the 
threat of climate change?‟ 
 

The Metro Mayor thanked Mr Grant for his question and reported that 
this was a very important issue for the future of the City Region and the whole 
of the UK. 
 

He reported that the city region was blessed with some unique natural 
assets, including the river and coastline, which give the potential to be the 
cleanest and greenest city region in the country.  
 

He highlighted that the UK government had agreed a national target to 
reduce carbon levels by 80% by 2050 compared to 1990 levels as part of its 

Page 11

http://www.yoe2019lcr.org.uk/


commitment to tackle emissions from greenhouse gases. However, the 
Liverpool City Region‟s ambition is to be zero carbon by 2040.  
 

The Metro Mayor advised that many current work programmes by the 
Combined Authority would make a positive contribution to carbon reductions 
and in tackling climate change.  These included the Mersey Tidal Power 
commission, supporting wind and solar power, exploiting the potential of 
hydrogen engines and reducing emissions from buses and ferries. Which he 
believed would provide the City Region with clean green energy, both 
electricity and gas, meaning that the City Region would not need fracking as 
an energy source.   

 
However, he advised that fracking was a largely national planning 

matter, with the final decisions relating to applications being taken out of the 
hands of local communities and local elected representatives and being 
decided by Government appointed Inspectors.  

 
The Metro Mayor referred to the Greater Manchester Spatial 

Framework which stated that fracking was unnecessary to achieve a carbon 
neutral city region. He advised that the Combined Authority‟s position will be 
further developed as work continued on the Spatial Development Strategy 
and is associated evidence based.  

 
In conclusion, the Metro Mayor reported that he had made clear his 

personal opposition to fracking and that in his opinion it would not form part of 
any plans for the City Region.  

 
Metro Mayor S Rotheram advised that a written response would be 

sent to Mr Grant within 10 working days.  
 
133. PETITIONS AND STATEMENTS  
 

 The Metro Mayor reported that no petitions or statements had been 
received.  

 
134. MINUTES OF THE TRANSPORT COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 

2018  

 
 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Transport Committee held on 13 
December 2018 were received and confirmed by the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority.  
 
Minutes 121 to 134 be received as a correct record on the 1st day of February 
2019. 

 

Chairperson of the Combined Authority 
 

(The meeting closed at 2.12 pm) 
 
 

Page 12



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 

 

To:   The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined 
Authority 

  
Meeting:     1 February 2019 
 
Authorities Affected:    All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM:  No 
 
Key Decision  
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BUDGET SETTING REPORT 2019/20 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report seeks approval for the Liverpool City Region Mayoral Combined 

Authority budget for 2019/20.  In establishing its budget, the LCRCA needs to make 
a series of key decisions regarding its income and how it uses this income. 

 
1.2 The Combined Authorities (Finance) Order 2017 established new financial 

arrangements in respect of Mayoral Combined Authorities that need to be reflected 
in the 2019/20 budget.  These include the requirement to specifically determine the 
costs of the Combined Authority Metro Mayor.  

 

1.3 The Order also requires the Combined Authority Metro Mayor to notify the 
Combined Authority of the Mayor‟s draft budget before 1st February 2019, which 
was complied with in the issuing of this report and provides a statutory timescale for 
the Combined Authority to consider and, where appropriate, to recommend 
amendments to the Mayor before 8th February 2019. 

 
1.4 This provision only applies to the Mayoral Cost element of the Combined Authority‟s 

budget for 2019/20, and specifically those areas where the Mayoral Combined 
Authority has the power to provide funding through the establishment of a Mayoral 
precept. 

 
1.5 The Combined Authority must also set a budget for its other costs in 2019/20.  This 

includes transport activity funded through the Transport Levy mechanism and the 
operation and maintenance of the Mersey Tunnels. 

 
1.6 Members will be aware that the LCRCA has a statutory duty to agree a levy for 

2019/20 before 14th February 2019.   
 
1.7 The LCRCA must also set the schedule of tolls applicable to the Mersey Tunnel for 

2019/20.  This decision is subject to a separate report that was considered by the 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Transport Committee at its meeting of the 31st January, and the revenue associated 
with their recommendation is incorporated into the LCRCA budget for 2019/20. 

 
1.8 In funding its transport activities, the Combined Authority also needs to establish a 

differential levy in respect of the LCRCA‟s transport powers in Halton.  It is 
important to note, however that there are no changes to the delivery of transport 
services in Halton implied within this report. 

 
1.9 The purpose of this report is to bring together these key decisions and present 

detail of the budget requirement for the Authority for 2019/20, together with the 
operational grants that will be payable to Merseytravel and Halton for the delivery of 
the LCRCA‟s transport activities throughout the City Region. 
 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
   
2.1 Summary 
 
2.1.1 The budget report needs to consider the Mayoral budget and the General budget for 

2019/20.  The general budget includes recommendations relating to transport and 
the funding of Merseytravel for 2019/20. 

 
2.2 Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Mayoral Budget 2019/20 
 
2.2.1 The Mayor of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority has considered all 

options for funding the costs associated with delivering the devolution deal in 
2019/20.  Resources are required in order to deliver the Mayor‟s priorities for the 
City Region, however sufficient government funding for capacity and running costs 
has not been forthcoming. 

 
2.2.2 As such, the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority is recommended to:- 

 
(a) note this report; 
(b) agree the Mayoral Budget as presented at Table 2 of this report; and 
(c) agree to funding costs associated with the exercise of Mayoral 

responsibilities as defined by the Combined Authorities (Finance) Order 2017 
through the establishment of a Mayoral Precept in 2019/20 distributed 
between households on the basis set out in Table 1 of this report. 
 

2.3 Liverpool City Region Combined Authority General Budget 2019/20 
 
2.3.1 The Combined Authority‟s General Budget for 2019/20 includes those elements that 

are explicitly excluded from a Mayoral Precept and those costs related to the 
Combined Authority‟s role as the Transport Authority for the City Region. 

 
2.3.2 The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority is recommended to:- 
 
 

(d) approve the Combined Authority general budget for 2019/20 which is 
summarised in Table 3 below; 

Page 14



(e) approve a freeze in the transport levy for 2019/20 with the transport levy 
payable remaining at £95.4m and distributed in the manner set out in Table 4 
of this report; 

(f) approve the payment of operational grants to Merseytravel of £93.9m for 
general responsibilities and £23.74m in respect of the operation of the 
Mersey Tunnels;  

(g) accept the recommendation of the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority‟s Transport Committee in respect of Tunnel Tolls at Table 5 of this 
report; 

(h) approve a grant of £5.5m to Merseytravel to support the delivery of strategic 
capital investment in transport on behalf of the Combined Authority; 

(i) approve the planned release of £12m of Rail Reserves to support the Rolling 
Stock programme costs; 

(j) approve the allocation of the Transport Pot capital funding as detailed at 6.5-
6.7 of this report; 

(k) approve the establishment of a differential transport levy for Halton in 
2019/20 and set the differential levy at £3.148m for 2019/20; 

(l) approve the Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 incorporating the 
Minimum Revenue Provision and associated Treasury Limits and Prudential 
Indicators as detailed at Appendix 1; and 

(m) approve the Capital Strategy at Appendix 3 
 

 
3. BACKGROUND  
 
3.1 The devolution deal agreed in November 2015 gives the City Region greater control 

across a range of areas including economic development, transport, skills, housing, 
business support, energy, spatial planning and culture.   In addition to these 
powers, the devolution deal could attract over £1bn in additional funding for the City 
Region over the next 5 years. 

 
3.2 A condition of the devolution agreement was the creation of the position of a directly 

elected Metro Mayor. The first election for this position took place in May 2017. 
 
3.3 The budget for 2019-20 is established under the Combined Authorities (Finance) 

Order 2017 and is the second budget set under the Metro Mayor. 
 
3.4 This budget reflects the priorities of the Metro Mayor and Combined Authority 

council leaders and makes specific provision to advance their delivery priorities for 
the next 12 months. 

 
3.5 In particular, the budget includes specific provision: 
 

i. for a £1 Fast Tag for City Region residents and a freeze in the Mersey tunnel 
cash toll for all users;    

ii. to invest in our digital infrastructure to ensure that all parts of the City Region 
benefit from fastest broadband speeds in the UK; 

iii. to make use of new Mayoral powers with respect to the bus network so that 
the Mayor can use these powers to ensure that bus services in the City 
Region work for the benefit of bus users and the wider economy; 

iv. to take forward the procurement of  a new generation of Mersey Ferries; 

Page 15



v. to build a new smart ticketing system that will build upon, and eventually 
replace the current  Walrus platform; 

vi. to develop a Mayoral Transport Plan that will seek to ease congestion, 
improve air quality and increase connectivity;  

vii. to increase investment in cycling and walking; 

viii. to introduce a City Region apprenticeship portal that will make it easier for 
those seeking apprenticeships to access employment opportunities; and 

ix. to take forward the development of the Liverpool City Region Spatial 
Framework. 

3.6 The legislation establishing the Mayoral Combined Authority gave the Mayoral 
Combined Authority certain fiscal powers around the establishment of a precept and 
established the precept as the means of funding the mayor‟s office and certain other 
Combined Authority functions.  

 
3.7 The Combined Authorities (Finance) Order 2017 Part 2 states that: 

 
“The costs of a mayor for the area of a combined authority that 
are incurred in, or in connection with, the exercise of mayoral 
functions are to be met by precepts issued by the authority under 
section 40 of the 1992 [Local Government Finance] Act (issuing 
of precepts by major precepting authorities)” 

 
3.8 The City Region, in common with other city regions, has long argued with 

government that the scale of local government cuts and the absence of revenue 
funding associated with devolution significantly jeopardises our ambitious 
programme of investment.  Despite this, no central government revenue support is 
provided beyond a time-limited Mayoral Capacity grant for start-up costs. 

 
3.9 The Combined Authority‟s 2018/19 budget included funding for costs associated 

with the exercise of Mayoral powers of £6.2m.  This funding requirement was 
provided by the constituent Local Authorities as part of a transitional funding 
arrangement to avoid the need for a precept in 2018/19. 

 
3.10 The Metro Mayor and Combined Authority council leaders recognise the financial 

challenges facing households across the City Region and do not want to add to this 
burden unnecessarily.  It is a fact, however that  the ongoing impact of austerity on 
local authority finances means that this transitional funding could only be provided 
on a short-term basis for one year.   

 
3.11 This meant that a sustainable solution to funding the new responsibilities associated 

with the devolution deal – in particular the management of a portfolio of investments 
and projects in excess of £1.2 billion – needed to be identified in readiness for the 
2019/20 budget. 

 
3.12 The Metro Mayor and the other City Region leaders on the Combined Authority 

have worked closely with the recognised public sector accountancy body CIPFA this 
year who examined a range of options before concluding that the establishment of a 
Mayoral Precept offers the only sustainable solution to resolving the financial 
requirements of the organisation. 

Page 16



 
3.13 In the absence of any dedicated Central Government funding, and after considering 

the conclusions of CIPFA, the Metro Mayor will seek to employ a precept to cover 
Mayoral Combined Authority costs in 2019/20. 

 
3.14 This report recommends that the Combined Authority accept the conclusions of 

CIPFA and adopt a precept model for 2019/20 in accordance with the Combined 
Authority Finance Order (2017). 

 
 
4. MAYORAL COSTS AND BUDGET 2019/20 
 
4.1 Mayoral Priorities, Achievements and Plans 
 
4.1.2. The Combined Authority Finance Order (2017) establishes a specific requirement 

for a Mayoral budget associated with Mayoral powers and Mayoral activities.   
 
4.1.3 Through his manifesto, the Metro Mayor has put forward an ambitious programme 

of initiatives that will create inclusive economic growth and which will benefit 
everyone in the City Region. 

 
4.1.4 These priorities include building upon commitments made in our devolution 

agreement with government and ensuring that the City Region gets maximum 
benefit from those resources and powers that have been devolved to it. 

 
4.1.5 Since the Metro Mayor‟s election in May 2017 the Mayor, working with Combined 

Authority council leaders, has begun to deliver on these ambitions by: 
 

i. providing £400m in funding for economic development projects across the city 
region, creating 9,000 jobs and 5,500 apprentices;  

ii. creating a Strategic Investment Fund that will provide an additional £500m in 
funding for the City Region over the next five years;  

iii. introducing half price bus travel for all apprentices under the age of 25; 

iv. investing £8.3m in the first phase of a 372 mile walking and cycling network; 

v. progressing the introduction of new publicly owned trains onto the Mersey Rail 
network by 2021;  

vi. using the influence of the Metro Mayor‟s office as a member of the TfN board 
to secure increased compensation for Northern Rail and Trans Pennine 
Express passengers affected by last May‟s timetable disruption through;  

vii. providing £6m for a Mayoral Town Centre Fund to support local high streets 
across the City Region; 

viii. forming the Mersey Tidal Power Commission to oversee the potential creation 
of sustainable energy solution that harness the power of the River Mersey;  

ix. establishing a City Region-wide task force to tackle poor air quality;  

x. creating a Fairness and Social Advisory Board to ensure that social justice and 
social value is hard wired into policy making; and 

Page 17



xi. ensuring that the Liverpool City Region became the first Combined Authority in 
the country accredited as a Real Living Wage employer. 

4.1.6 In addition, since the election of the Metro Mayor, the Liverpool City Region has 
secured over £183m in additional funding from Government, including:  

 

 £172m Transforming Cities Fund 

 £7.7m for a housing first approach to tackling homelessness 

 £2.1m Homelessness Trailblazer Funding 

 £2m from the Mayoral Capacity Fund 
 

4.1.7 It is the Mayor‟s clear intention to translate this additional funding into delivery, and 
in doing so, to generate the levels of confidence in the City Region that will attract 
more and more funding and investment. 

 
4.1.8 It is only through increasing investment in inclusive economic growth and ensuring 

that the proceeds of growth are felt across the City Region that the Mayor‟s 
programme will be delivered.  As such, the Mayor‟s budget for 2019/20 is very much 
focussed on the delivery of the benefits of devolution. 

 
4.2 Mayoral Precept 2019/20 
 
4.2.1 The Liverpool City Region Mayoral Combined Authority has been established in law 

as a major precepting authority in order that the costs associated with exercising its 
functions can be funded in an appropriate manner. 

 
4.2.2 The level of funding required from a Mayoral Precept for 2019/20 is equivalent to 

£19.00 for a Band D household, although it is important to stress that only 5% of 
households will pay the Band D precept or above. 

 
4.2.3 The distribution of households within the City Region is such that the overwhelming 

majority of households will pay £12.67 for a Band A property or £14.78 for a Band B 
property before any discounts are applied. Table 1 below shows the proposed 
charges for each property band. 

 
 Table 1 Mayoral Precept by Council Tax Band 2019/20 
 

Band Charge £ 

Band A 12.67 

Band B  14.78 

Band C  16.89 

Band D  19.00 

Band E  23.22 

Band F  27.44 

Band G 31.67 

Band H  38.00 

 

Page 18



4.2.4 This £13.00 average charge per household is in the context of additional funding 
worth up to £2,970 per Liverpool City Region household over a five year period1. 

 
4.2.5 In this context a precept of around £1 per month for most households in the City 

Region offers clear value for money set alongside the value of a devolution deal that 
could bring well over £1bn in investment into the City Region over the next 5 years. 

 
4.2.6 Those activities and commitments to be funded through the Mayoral Precept are 

considered in section 4.3 below. 
 
4.3 Mayoral Budget 2019/20 
 
4.3.1 Having due regard to the principles of value for money the Mayor has sought to 

minimise the costs associated with these functions and has established a structure 
that includes only those functions directly associated with delivering the maximum 
benefit for the City Region. 

 
4.3.2 In particular, the Metro Mayor has challenged officers to establish a structure for the 

delivery of the devolution deal that provides economies of scale by using existing 
City Region resources wherever possible. As a result, the costs of Mayoral back 
office functions and its accommodation costs have all been kept to a minimum by 
sharing services and location with Merseytravel. 

 
4.3.3 In doing so, the Metro Mayor has ensured that all costs that fall within the scope of 

the Mayoral Precept are directly related to the delivery of his Mayoral priorities and 
those requirements established in the deal, of which management of unprecedented 
levels of investment is at the fore. 

 
4.3.4 This approach ensures resources will directly flow into priorities around skills, 

culture, digital connectivity, tidal energy and other areas associated with the 
devolution agreement and will be of significant and long-term benefit to the City 
Region. 

  

                                                 
1
 Based on £1.2bn devolved funding into the City Region divided by its Council Tax of 403,942 Band D equivalent 

properties 

Page 19



Table 2: Liverpool City Region Mayoral Combined Authority Costs 2019/20 

 
Cost Centre Budget 2019/20 

 
£000 

Direct Mayoral Costs 
 Cost of Mayor and Mayor's Office 361 

Specified Programme Costs 
 Tidal Energy Project 951 

Digital Connectivity Project 266 

Mayoral Transport Priorities 780 

Wirral Borough of Culture Award 300 

Total Specified Programme Costs 2,297 

Direct Service Costs 
 Policy & Future Devolution 1,597 

Employment & Skills 647 

Housing & Spatial Planning 287 

Commercial Development 759 

Total Direct Service Costs 3,290 

Corporate Management Costs 
 Chief Executive's Office 290 

Corporate Services 889 

Communication and Engagement 548 

Total Corporate Management Costs 1,727 

Total Cost to be met by Precept 7,675 

 
4.3.5 Certain costs associated with the operation of the Combined Authority are excluded 

from the Mayoral Precept by the Combined Authority Finance Order (2017). These 
relate to certain functions within the management of the Strategic Investment Fund 
and certain other management functions. It is for this reason that £2.348m of 
revenue funding from Gainshare grant will be used to fund overall costs in 2019/20 

 
4.3.6 Funding for transport and certain employment and skills functions is also excluded 

from the Mayoral Precept and is considered within the Combined Authority‟s overall 
budget which is considered in section 5 below. 

 
 
5. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY REVENUE BUDGET 

2019/20 
 
5.1 Overview 
 
5.1.1 In addition to the Mayoral budget, the Combined Authority‟s budget also reflects 

those powers and responsibilities already held by the Combined Authority prior to 
the establishment of the City Region Mayoral powers.   

 
5.1.2 In respect of its transport powers, this budget considers the transport levy payable 

by each of the district councils within the city region and the schedule of tolls in 
respect of the Mersey Tunnels for 2019/20. 

 

Page 20



5.1.3 The Combined Authority‟s general budget for 2018-19 includes those costs that are 
identified in the Mayoral budget, is shown in Table 3 below. The Combined 
Authority‟s general budget includes all the functions of the Combined Authority and 
not just those associated with the exercise of Mayoral powers.   

 
 

Table 3 LCRCA Revenue Budget 2019/20  
 

 Budget 
2019/20 
£’000 

Mayoral Precepted Costs 
CA Non Precepted Costs 

7,675 
4,098 

Total CA Costs excluding transport 11,773 

Mersey Tunnels Grant 
Merseytravel Operating Grant 
Rolling Stock Project Costs 
Debt Servicing Costs 

23,734 
93,916 

8,620 
21,892 

Transport Related Operating Costs 148,162 

Total Revenue Expenditure 159,935 

Funded by: 
Mayoral Precept 
Transport Levy 
Mersey Tunnels Income 
Mayoral Capacity Grant 
Gain Share Revenue Grant 
Use of Reserves 

 
(7,675) 

(95,400) 
(39,597) 
(1,000) 
(2,348) 

(13,915) 

Total Income (159,935) 

Net Budget Requirement - 

 
 
5.2 Transport  
 
5.2.1 The Combined Authority is the transport authority for the Liverpool City Region.  Its 

transport responsibilities are discharged by Merseytravel and also by Halton Council 
within the boundaries of the borough of Halton. 

 
5.2.2 Transport responsibilities are funded through the transport levy.  The transport levy 

has reduced significantly in recent years and this has benefited those districts that 
fund the levy through Council Tax. 

 
5.2.3 Higher inflation and demographic pressures mean that further levy reductions are 

not possible for 2019/20 however the CA can commit to a levy freeze at the level of 
£95.4m for 2019/20.  Should this levy be agreed, the distribution of the Levy will be 
as detailed in the table below. 

  

Page 21



 
Table 4 Transport Levy by Authority 

 

 Transport Levy 
2018/19 

£’000 

Transport Levy 
2019/20 

£’000 

Knowsley 
Liverpool 
Sefton 
St Helens 
Wirral 
 
Total 

10,032 
32,869 
18,605 
12,107 
21,786 

 
95,400 

10,006 
33,095 
18,490 
12,073 
21,736 

 
95,400 

 
 
5.2.4 In order to operate within these cash limits, Merseytravel will be required to continue 

to make significant savings over the period and also to employ its revenue reserves 
to address funding requirements for the Merseyrail Network.  This is a particularly 
challenging environment for Merseytravel due to the additional costs associated 
with the new Merseyrail fleet coinciding with significant reductions in government 
funding for rail through the Special Rail Grant. 

 
5.2.5  In total, a freeze in the transport levy will require Merseytravel to employ £4.3m 

(excluding utilisation of Authority reserves to support Rolling Stock delivery) of its 
reserves in 2019/20.  The reduction in Special Rail Grant from government has had 
a significant and negative impact on Merseytravel‟s ability to meet its commitments 
on the Merseyrail network and has necessitated a contribution from reserves to 
mitigate the impact of this reduction. 

 
5.2.6 As such, identifying a long-term financial solution to the reduction in Special Rail 

Grant needs to be a priority in 2019/20. 
 
5.2.7 Other transport priorities will include: 
 i. continue to extend commercialisation of the supported bus network; 

 ii. procure a new fleet of vessels to replace the existing and aging Mersey 
Ferries vessels with modern, efficient and greener counterparts; 

iii. work with the Bus Alliance to increase patronage across the network by the 
promotion of affordable, sustainable and reliable bus services, backed by a 
modern, integrated ticketing scheme; 

iv examine the potential benefits and risks associated with the Mayor‟s powers 
in respect of bus services; and 

v. move into the implementation phase for the new rolling stock fleet as 
completed units arrive for testing on the network during 2019/20. 

 
5.2.8 In order to deliver on these priorities, Merseytravel will receive a grant from the 

Combined Authority of £93.9m in 2019/20. 
 
5.2.9 Arrangements for Halton will continue to recognise the historical differences in 

transport funding and delivery, with Halton subject to a differential transport levy of 
£3.148m which will be paid back to Halton for transport delivery within its 
boundaries on behalf of the LCRCA.   

 

Page 22



5.3 TUNNEL TOLLS 
 
5.3.1 Setting the tunnels tolls is a key requirement of the LCRCA‟s budget.  The 

Transport Committee considered a detailed report on the proposed  schedule of 
tolls at its meeting of the 31st January and is considering a schedule of tolls for 
2019/20 that is:- 

 
 

Table 5 Tunnel Toll Schedule 2019/20 Considered by LCRCA Transport 
Committee 31st January 2019 

 

Vehicle 
Class 

Authorised 
Toll 
(November 
RPI) 

2019/20 
Cash Toll  

2019/20 Fast 
Tag Toll – 

LCR 
Resident* 

2019/20 Fast 
Tag Toll – 
Non LCR 
Resident 

1 £2.00 £1.80 £1.00 £1.80 

2 £4.10 £3.60 £2.40 £2.40 

3 £6.10 £5.40 £3.60 £3.60 

4 £8.20 £7.20 £4.80 £4.80 

  
 
5.3.2 This is a radical change in the structure of tolls and allows City Region residents 

(including Halton residents) to benefit from additional discounted tolls for the first 
time. 

 
5.3.3 City Region residents using a Fast Tag for a Class 1 vehicle will be charged £1 at 

all times.  This is a benefit of 80p per journey against the cash toll and delivers a 
key aspect of the Metro Mayor‟s manifesto pledges to the City Region. 

 
5.3.4 In recognition of the impact of this change on overall transport funding and the need 

for Mersey Tunnels to remain financially sustainable, the Fast Tag discount will only 
apply to City Region residents using vehicles for private, non-commercial use that 
are registered within the City Region. 

 
5.3.5 To mitigate the impact this will have on non-residents, the cash toll will remain at 

£1.80 for 2019/20. 
 
5.3.6 This measure will save tunnels users switching from cash to fast tag up to £584 a 

year.  
 
 
6. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

6.1 Within its capacity as the Accountable Body, the Combined Authority receives 
capital grant in respect of the Local Growth Fund (LGF) programme, devolution 
monies received from central government (Gain Share funding) and direct transport 
related grants. The LCRCA‟s operates a Single Pot for the capital funds for which it 
is a recipient.  For 2019/20 the annual allocations into the single pot are as follows: 

  

Page 23



 
Table 6: Sources of Capital Funding 

 

 2019/20 
£‟000 

LGF 1 
LGF 2 
LGF 3 
Gain Share Capital 
Transforming Cities 
Transport Funding 

20.13 
- 

6.95 
18.00 
30.00 
26.5 

Total Annual Allocation 101.58 

 
6.2 LGF funds have been received by the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) on the 

back of successful bids for these funds with the Combined Authority fulfilling the 
Accountable Body role for these funds. To date bids have been made and received 
against three rounds of Local Growth Fund allocations with funding provided for 
specific thematic areas.  Whilst a significant proportion of the LGF 1 funds have 
been committed, with the agreement of the LEP, uncommitted LGF funds are being 
administered as part of the single capital pot.  

 
6.3 The table below summarises projections for the period 2019/20 to 2020/21 for the 

Authority‟s capital programme together with the high level programme in respect of 
Merseytravel.  A more detailed scheme based analysis is attached to this report at 
Appendix 2. 

 
Table 7 Projected Capital Spend 2019/20 to 2020/21 
 

 2019/20 
£’m 

2020/21 
£’m 

2021/22 
£m 

Total 
£’m 

Capital Expenditure 
 
LGF 1 Schemes 
LGF 2 Schemes 
LGF 3 Schemes 
Gain Share Schemes 
Transforming Cities 
Transport Single Pot 
Merseytravel Capital 
Schemes 

 
 

44.37 
11.29 
31.03 
43.66 
11.70 
26.50 

129.30 

 
 

27.05 
13.82 
29.43 
50.90 
10.91 
26.50 

103.97 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7.30 
 

35.68 
 

 
 

71.42 
25.11 
60.46 
94.56 
29.91 
53.00 

268.95 

Total Capital Spend 297.85 262.58 42.98 603.41 

Funded by: 
 
Borrowing 
Capital Grant 
Revenue Contributions 
Reserves 

 
 

201.59 
83.28 
7.50 
5.48 

 
 

109.42 
143.21 

5.95 
4.00 

 
 

26.50 
7.30 
5.18 
4.00 

 
 

337.51 
233.79 

18.63 
13.48 

Total Funding 297.85 262.58 42.98 603.41 

Net Requirement - - - - 

 
 

Page 24



6.4 Current projections for Authority capital spend only reflect spend to 2021. This 
profile is a result of the requirement for all projects brought forward as part of the 
first round of SIF to have delivered by 2021. A second call for SIF projects was 
launched in December 2018 and pipeline projects are currently being built up in 
conjunction with the Investment Team. As the pipeline is developed and projects 
are approved by the Authority to progress profiles will be updated to reflect these 
changes. 

 
6.5 Whilst the Transport capital pot forms part of the Authority‟s Single Capital Pot, it 

has been agreed that the £26.5m will be allocated outside of the SIF process. The 
Transport Pot comprises two elements, the Integrated Transport Block and the 
Highways Maintenance Block. 

 
6.6 As in previous years the intention is to allocate the Highways Maintenance and an 

element of the Integrated Transport block to the constituent Local Authorities using 
a historic formulaic allocation approach. Table 8 below details the allocation. 

 
 Table 8 Transport Block Allocation 
 
  

 Highways 
Maintenance 

 
£’000 

Integrated 
Transport 

Block 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£’000 

Halton 1,770 460 2,230 

Knowsley 1,471 530 2,001 

Liverpool 3,348 1,740 5,088 

Sefton 2,298 990 3,288 

St Helens 1,921 640 2,561 

Wirral 2,625 1,150 3,775 

Total 13,433 5,510 18,943 

 
6.7 The remainder of the allocation is proposed to be allocated to the Combined 

Authority and Merseytravel as detailed in table 9 below. 
 
 Table 9 Allocation of Retained Transport Funding 
 

 Allocation 
£’000 

Building and maintaining and city wide evidence base 1,000 

Bus Alliance support 500 

Rail enhancement support 500 

Mayoral Combined Authority priorities 2,500 

Key Route Network 3,000 

Total 7,500 

 
6.8 The funding allocation for the Key Route Network will be subject to a separate 

report which will be brought to the Combined Authority in due course for 
consideration and approval. 

  

Page 25



 
 
 
7. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Human Resources 
  

None as a direct result of this report. 
 
7.2 Physical Assets  

 
7.2.1 This report will provide resources to Merseytravel to undertake its asset 

management function in respect of the Mersey Tunnels and other LCRCA assets. 
 

7.2.2 The Single Transport / Highways allocation will enable highways authorities to 
provide necessary maintenance and management of the City Region‟s highways 
infrastructure and in particular, the Key Route Network. 
 

7.3 Information Technology  
 
None as a direct result of this report. 
 

7.4 Fairness and Social Justice  
 

The new LCRCA budget will offer the means to deliver key policy decisions required 
to make a major positive impact on the life chances of City Region citizens. These 
will include a City Region Local Industrial Strategy which places fairness and 
inclusive growth and Spatial Development and Housing Strategies which foster 
communities and help address our housing and homelessness challenges. 

 
8. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
8.1 The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority recognises that it has a number of 

key strategic risks relating to resources.   Specifically, these relate to being unable 
to attract, manage and deliver external funding through a lack of resources and 
future funding certainty. 

 
8.2 In addition, there is a risk that in failing to set an appropriate budget within the 

timescale defined by the Combined Authority Finance Order (2017) the Combined 
Authority would be acting unlawfully. 

 
8.3 This budget, if agreed, addresses both these risks. 
 
8.4 There remains a significant financial risk in respect of transport funding, and 

particularly the Merseyrail Concession financial arrangements.  These risks fall into 
two main areas: 

  
1. The reduction in Special Rail Grant payments from government in respect of 

the management of the Merseyrail franchise; and 
2. Increases in the cost of the Network Rail infrastructure modifications 

necessary for the operation of the new rolling stock fleet. 
 

Page 26



8.5 While these risks can be managed within the 2019/20 budget, addressing the longer 
term financial challenges this creates for the Merseyrail concession and the 
consequences for Merseytravel will need to be addressed in 2019/20.  

 
 
9. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 In establishing a budget for 2019/20, the Mayor and the Combined Authority have 

been mindful of their responsibilities under the Public Sector Equality Duty.  The 
Combined Authority has a duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
9.2 Whilst there are no issues with the budget itself, any actions undertaken as part of 

the management of any savings, the equalities consequences will be fully appraised 
and considered as part of the process, and any negative implications for any of the 
protected characteristics will be mitigated, where possible, subject to available 
resources. 

 
 

10. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 

A communications strategy will be put in place around the budget and any 
consequent decisions and implications arising from the budget will be managed 
within the overall communications strategy. 

 
 
11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The Liverpool City Region Mayoral Combined Authority is recommending a series 

of measures within its overall budget for 2019/20.  These measures each recognise 
the need to deliver the functions of the Mayoral Combined Authority while seeking 
to protect households in the City Region from additional financial burdens wherever 
possible. 

  

Page 27



 
11.2 The 2019/20 financial year will be the first full year that the Mayoral Combined 

Authority will need to establish a Mayoral Precept to cover the cost of Mayoral 
functions.  This precept will be around £1 per month for most households and will 
unlock significant financial investment that will benefit all households throughout the 
city region.   

 
11.3 The Metro Mayor is determined that this investment directly translates into 

improvements in skills, employment, culture, and jobs within a cleaner and fairer 
City Region. 

 
 

JOHN FOGARTY 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
 
 
 
Contact Officers:- 
Sarah Johnston, Head of Finance Merseytravel (0151 330 1015) 
Liz Storey, Corporate Communications Manager, Merseytravel (0151 330 1151) 
 
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 LCRCA Treasury Management Strategy  
Appendix 2 LCRCA Projected Capital Spend 2019/20 to 2020/21 
Appendix 3 LCRCA Capital Strategy 
 
  

Page 28



APPENDIX ONE 
 

COMBINED AUTHORITY TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, 
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT 

STRATEGY 2019/20 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND  
 
1.1 The Authority is required to operate a balanced budget which broadly means that 

expenditure incurred during the year will be met through cash raised during the 
year.  An important part of the treasury management operation is ensuring that cash 
flow is adequately planned with cash available when it is needed. Surplus cash is 
invested in counterparties commensurate with the Authority‟s low risk appetite 
which provide adequate liquidity: security and liquidity are considered prior to 
return. 

 
1.2 The second main function of the Authority‟s treasury management activities is the 

funding of its capital plans.  The capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need 
of the Authority, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the 
Authority can meet its capital spend obligations.  The management of longer term 
cash may involve arranging long or short term loans or using longer term cash flow 
surpluses.  On occasions, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously 
drawn may be restructured to meet cost or risk objectives. 

 
1.3 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the Authority is critical 

as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to 
meet spending commitments as they fall due; either on day to day revenue or for 
larger capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest 
cost of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the 
available budget. Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, 
it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested as a loss of 
principal will in effect result in a loss to General Fund Balances. 

 
1.4 Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury 

function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activity, arising 
usually from capital expenditure, and are separate from the day to day treasury 
management activities. 

 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
 “The management of the Authority‟s investment and cash flows, its banking, money 

market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
returns.” 

 
Reporting Requirements 

 
1.5 The CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes (revised 2017) detail the 

reporting requirements for the Authority. From a treasury perspective, the Authority 
is required to receive and approve as a minimum, three main reports each year, 

Page 29



which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These can be 
summarised as: 

 

 An annual treasury management strategy and prudential and treasury indicators 
– the scope of which is outlined above; 

 A mid-year treasury management report providing an update on progress of the 
capital position and amending treasury and prudential indicators if required; and 

 An outturn treasury report detailing the outturn position and comparing 
performance against estimates included within the strategy. 

 
1.6 In addition to the treasury reporting requirements, the updated Codes require all 

Authorities to prepare a capital strategy report which will cover the following: 
 

 A high level, long terms overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 

treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services; 

 An overview of how the associated risk is managed; and 

 The implications for future financial sustainability. 

 
 The aim of the capital strategy is to ensure Members of the Authority fully 

understand the overall long term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy 
requirements, governance and risk appetite. 

 
1.7 The capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management 

Statement, with non-treasury investments being reported through the former. The 
rationale for the separate reporting is to ensure there is a separation of the core 
treasury function with the focus on security, liquidity and yield principles and the 
non-treasury investments which are driven by expenditure on an investment with 
the intended purpose of generating a return. The capital strategy will show: 

 

 The corporate governance arrangements in place for non-treasury investments; 

 Any service objectives relating to these type of activities; 

 The expected income, costs and resulting contributions; 

 The debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs; 

 The pay back (MRP Policy); 

 For non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value; and 

 The risks associated with each activity. 

 
1.8 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 covers:- 
 

 The current treasury position; 

 Prospects for interest rates; 

 Borrowing requirement; 

 Borrowing strategy; 

 Annual investment strategy; 

 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Strategy; and 

 Treasury management limits and prudential indicators for 2019/20 to 2021/22. 
 

Page 30



1.9 The Authority uses Link Asset Services as its external treasury management 
advisors.  The Authority recognises that responsibility for treasury management 
decisions remain with the organisation and seeks to ensure that undue reliance is 
not placed upon external service providers.  Notwithstanding this, the Authority 
recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.  
The appointment of external advisors and the value provided will be subject to 
regular review. 

 
2. THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019/20-2021/22 
 
2.1 Capital Expenditure  
 
2.1.1 The Authority‟s capital expenditure plans are a key driver of its treasury 

management activity and the output of these plans are reflected in the Prudential 
Indicators. The table below summarises the Authority‟s capital expenditure plans for 
the current financial years and the three subsequent years, together with the 
proposed sources of financing. 

 

 2018/19 
Estimated 

Outturn 
£m 

2019/20 
Estimate  

 
£m 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 
£m 

2021/22 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Merseytravel capital 
spend (1) 

171.18 129.30 103.97 35.68 

Combined Authority 
capital spend 

83.08 168.55 158.61 7.30 

Commercial activities/ 
non-financial 
investments 

- - - - 

Total Capital Spend 254.26 297.85 262.58 42.98 

Funded by:     

Capital Grants (97.36) (83.28) (143.21) (7.30) 

Use of Reserves (36.98) (5.48) (4.00) (4.00) 

Other Contributions (3.92) (7.50) (5.95) (5.18) 

Borrowing (116.00) (201.59) (109.42) (26.50) 
(1) A breakdown of the Merseytravel and Combined Authority capital spend is shown in the main body of the 

budget report. 

 
2.1.2 To the extent that the overall quantum of the programme detailed above increases 

and cannot be funded through other grants or reserves, this would result in an 
increase to the overall requirement to borrow.  

 
2.1.3 Whilst at the time of writing the treasury management strategy, the Authority 

currently does not have a projected programme of non-financial investments, it is 
envisaged that this profile will start to emerge on the back of the „SIF 2‟ call. As 
these projects crystallise and move through to approval and funding agreements, 
these will be fed into the projections. 

 
2.1.4 Current proposals for the funding of any commercial investments are such that 

these will be funded entirely from the Authority‟s devolution monies and therefore 

Page 31



should not require the Authority to undertake any borrowing to support these 
activities.  

 
 
 
2.2 The Authority’s Borrowing Need (Capital Financing Requirement) 
 
2.2.1 The second prudential indicator is the Authority‟s Capital Financing Requirement 

(CFR). The CFR represents the historic outstanding capital expenditure that has not 
yet been paid for either through revenue or capital resources and therefore a 
measure of the Authority‟s indebtedness and underlying need to borrow.  

 
2.2.2 To the extent that the Authority undertakes capital expenditure for which there are 

immediately available capital or revenue resources, this will increase the CFR. The 
CR does not, however, increase indefinitely as the MRP is a statutory annual 
charge which broadly reduces indebtedness in line with each assets life.  

 
2.2.3 The Authority is asked to approve the CFR projections below. 
 

 2018/19 
Estimated 

Outturn 
£m 

2019/20 
Estimate  

 
£m 

2020/21 
Estimate 

 
£m 

2021/22 
Estimate 

 
£m 

Opening CFR 205.298 293.086 486.793 588.645 

CFR Services 96.00 201.59 109.42 26.50 

CFR Commercial 
Activity 

- - - - 

Total Increase in CFR 301.298 494.68 596.213 615.145 

Less: MRP (8.212) (7.883) (7.568) (7.265) 

Net Movement in CFR 87.788 193.707 101.852 19.239 

Closing CFR 293.086 486.793 588.645 607.884 

 
2.2.4 As detailed at 4.1.3-4 it is not possible to detailed the scope of non-treasury activity 

at this juncture however as these investments will be funded, they will not increase 
the Authority‟s overall requirement to borrow.  

 
2.3 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 
 
2.3.1 The Authority is required to make provision for the repayment of an element of the 

accumulated capital spend each year through a charge to revenue (the Minimum 
Revenue Provision – MRP) however should the Authority wish it is also allowed to 
undertaken additional voluntary payments if required (Voluntary Revenue Provision 
– VRP). 

 
2.3.2 The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

regulations have been issued which require the full Authority to approve an MRP 
statement in advance of the year. Under the guidance a number of options are 
available however the Authority does have some discretion over the approach taken 
however the overriding requirement is that any approach must be prudent. 

 
2.3.3 Based on the regulations, the Authority is recommended to approve the following 

MRP statement for application in 2019/20:- 

Page 32



 

 For historic capital expenditure (i.e. that incurred before 2008), MRP will 
continue to be calculated at 4% of the previous year end‟s Capital Financing 
Requirement (option 2 under the MHCLG guidance); and 

 For any new borrowing undertaken, MRP will be calculated using the asset 
life method (options 3 under the MHCLG guidance). 

 
2.3.4 As noted above, the regulations allow for an Authority to review and revise its MRP 

statement at any stage, providing that the overriding requirement that the resulting 
approach is prudent. To this end the Authority may revisit the above policy should it 
be determined that other prudent options are available. 

 
2.4 Borrowing  
 
2.4.1 The treasury management function ensures that the Authority‟s cash is organised in 

accordance with professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet the 
service activity and its capital strategy. This will involve organising cash flows and 
appropriate borrowing facilities as necessary. The table below details the projected 
overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2019. 

 

 As at 
10/01/2019 

 
£’000 

As at  
10/01/2019 

% 

As at 
31/03/19 

£’000 

As at 
31/03/19 

% 

Treasury Investments 
Banks 
Local Authorities 

 
174,980 

30,000 

 
85.3% 
14.7% 

 
88,400 

5,000 

 
94.6% 

5.4% 

Total Treasury Investments 204,946  93,400  

Loans 
PWLB 
Transferred Debt 

 
165,144 

16,020 

 
91.1% 

8.9% 

 
165,144 

16,020 

 
91.1% 

8.9% 

Total External Borrowing 181,164  181,164  

Net Treasury Investments/ 
(Borrowing) 

23,782  (87,764)  

 
2.4.2 The table below provide an analysis of the Authority‟s outstanding debt as at 31 

March 2019. 
 

Outstanding Debt as at 31 March 
2019 

Principal 
£m 

Average Rate 
% 

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) EIP 
Loans 

65.541 6.59 

PWLB Annuity Loans 46.292 8.35 

PWLB Maturity Loans 53.311 4.49 

Transferred Debt 16.020  

Total 181.164  

 
2.4.3 The Authority‟s projections for borrowing are summarised below showing actual 

external debt against the underlying capital borrowing need (the CFR) highlighting 
any under or over borrowing. 

  

Page 33



 

External Debt 2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£m 

2020/21 
Estimate 

£m 

2021/22 
Estimate  

£m 

External and Transferred Debt 1 
April 

191.88 181.06 170.24 159.42 

Forecast Change in Debt (10.82) (10.82) (10.82) (10.82) 

Gross Debt 31 March 181.06 170.24 159.42 148.60 

Capital Financing Requirement 293.09 486.79 588.65 607.890 

(Under)/ Over Borrowing  (112.03) (316.55) (429.23) (459.29) 

 
2.4.4 Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to 

ensure that the Authority operates its activities within well defined limits. One of 
these is that the Authority needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates 
of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two years. This allows some 
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is 
not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. 

 
2.4.5 The Director of Corporate Services reports that the Authority complied with this 

prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the 
future. This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals contained within the budget report. 

 
 Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 
 
2.4.6 The Operational Boundary is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 

expected to exceed. Ordinarily this would be a figure commensurate with the CFR 
however this may be lower or higher depending on the Authority‟s levels of actual 
debt and its ability to fund under borrowing by other cash resources. The table 
below summarises estimated operational boundary for the current and subsequent 
three years. 

 

 2018/19 
Forecast 

£’m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£’m 

2020/21 
Estimate  

£’m 

2021/22 
Estimate 

£’m 

Debt 259.48 391.83 459.88 470.10 

Other Long Term Liabilities - - - - 

Commercial Activities - - - - 

Total 259.48 391.83 459.88 470.10 

 
2.4.7 The Authorised Limit for external debt represents the legal limit beyond which 

external debt is prohibited. The limit for this key prudential indicator is set by the 
Authority and therefore any changes to this limit must be agreed by the Authority 
also. The Authorised Limit reflects the level of external debt which, whilst not 
desirable or sustainable over the longer term, could be afforded in the short term.  

  

Page 34



 

 2018/19 
Forecast 

£’m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£’m 

2020/21 
Estimate  

£’m 

2021/22 
Estimate 

£’m 

Debt 293.09 486.79 588.65 607.89 

Other Long Term Liabilities - - - - 

Commercial Activities - - - - 

Total 293.09 486.79 588.65 607.89 

 
 Prospects for Interest Rates 
 
2.4.8 The Authority has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisors and as 

part of this service they provide the Authority with details of their interest rate 
projections to assist the Authority formulate its view on interest rates. The table 
below provides an overview of Link Asset Service‟s view of interest rates. 

 

 
 
2.4.9 Base Rate was increased from its historic low of 0.5% to 0.75%in August 2018 and 

whilst there has been concern that the fiscal stimulus included by the Chancellor in 
his budget may increase the inflationary pressure, current forecasts are that Bank 
Rate will remain at its current level until June 2019. It is then projected that rates will 
increase gradually in 2020 reaching 2.0% by 2022. The longer term trend for gilt 
yields and consequently PWLB rates is on an upward trajectory  

 
2.4.10 With a number of significant external influences weighing on the UK, economic and 

interest rate forecasting remains difficult. Forecasts will be impacted upon by 
geopolitical developments, especially in the Eurozone, and developments in the 
financial markets.  

 
2.4.11 Based on the above, the impact on investment and borrowing rates is likely to be as 

follows: 
 

 Investment returns are likely to remain low during 2019/20 but with the trend 

being for rates rising gradually over the next couple of years; 

 Thus far during 2018/19, borrowing rates have been volatile however have 

increased slightly over the latter part of the year. In the face of this uncertainty 

the policy of running down cash balances in lieu of borrowing has served well, 

however this policy needs to be balanced carefully to avoid incurring higher 

future borrowing costs when the Authority is unable to avoid new borrowing; 

 There will remain a cost to carry to any new long term borrowing that causes an 

increase in cash balances as this position will most likely incur a revenue cost. 

Page 35



 
 Borrowing Strategy 
 
2.4.12 The Authority currently has an under borrowed position, which means that the CFR, 

the underlying need to borrow, has not been fully funded by loan debt as cash 
supporting the Authority‟s balances and reserves have been used as a temporary 
measure. Given the quantum of the capital programme over the next three years, 
there is likely to be an absolute need to borrow at some point. Moreover the longer 
term forecast for interest rates is to increase and therefore consideration must be 
given to weighting the short term advantage of internal borrowing against potential 
long term costs. This is if the opportunity is missed for taking loans at longer term 
rates where the rates are expected to be higher in future years. 

 
2.4.13 Whilst investment returns remain subdued and a relative dearth of high quality 

counterparties remains an issue, the strategy of utilising cash balances is 
considered prudent. Against this backdrop, the Director of Corporate Services will 
monitor interest rates and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances 
and satisfying the need to borrow, seeking to identify the options that are available 
and provide value for money for the Authority.  

 
2.4.14 The Authority will not borrow more than or in advance of need purely to profit from 

the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will 
be forward approved within the Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will 
be considered carefully to ensure value for money can be demonstrated and 
security of funds evidenced. Risks associated with borrowing in advance of need 
will be subject to prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or 
annual reporting mechanism. 

 
 Debt Rescheduling 
 
2.4.15 The Authority will monitor opportunities to generate savings through debt 

rescheduling activity, however any savings that could be generated would need to 
be considered in light of the current treasury position and the size of any potential 
premiums payable on early redemption of debt. Reasons for debt rescheduling will 
include: 

 
 The generation of cash savings or discounted cash flow savings; 

 Helping fulfil the treasury strategy; or 

 Enhancing the balance of the portfolio (maturity profile or balance of volatility). 

 
 Consideration will also be given to identify if there are residual potential for making 

short term savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current 
debt. 

 
2.5 Annual Investment Strategy 
 
2.5.1 In conducting its investment activity, the Authority will have regard to the MHCLG‟s 

Guidance on Local Government Investments and the 2017 revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 

Page 36



Notes (the CIPFA TM Code). The Authority‟s overriding investment priorities are the 
security of capital and liquidity of investments. 

 
2.5.2 Whilst MHCGL and CIFPA have extended the meaning of investments to include 

both financial and non-financial investments, the Annual Investment Strategy as 
detailed below deals solely with the financial (treasury) investments. Non-financial 
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered within 
the Capital Strategy. 

 
2.5.3 The Authority will seek to obtain the optimum return on its investments 

commensurate with the desired level of security and liquidity. Risk appetite is low 
with investment decisions giving priority to security of investments. The Authority 
does not borrow purely to invest or on-lend to make a return. 

 
2.5.4 The Authority has a clearly stipulated minimum acceptable level of credit quality of 

Counterparties which feeds into its Counterparty lending list. The creditworthiness 
methodology used to create the Authority‟s list takes account of the ratings provided 
by FITCH and/ or Moody‟s, two of the three main ratings agencies. All investments 
made during 2019/20 will be made in accordance with the Annual Investment 
Strategy detailed in Appendix Two. 

 
 
Contact Officers:- 
Sarah Johnston, Merseytravel (0151 330 1015) 
Liz Storey, Merseytravel (0151 330 1151) 
 
Appendices:- 
Annex One – Outlook for Interest Rates 
Annex Two – Annual Investment Strategy 
Annex Three – The Capital Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2019/20 to 2020/21 
Annex Four – Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 
Annex Five – The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151/ 73 Officer 

Page 37



ANNEX ONE 
 

OUTLOOK FOR INTEREST RATES 
 

 

 
The rates shown above take account of the 20 base point certainty rate reduction 
  

Page 38



 

ANNEX TWO 
 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2019/20 
 

The purpose of this Strategy is to set out, for approval by the Authority, is to outline: 
 

 The Authority‟s overriding investment objectives; 

 The investments the Authority will use for the prudent management of surplus 

funds during the financial year 2019/20 under the headings of Specified and 

Non Specified investments; 

 The procedures for determining the use of each asset class; 

 The maximum periods for which funds may be prudently committed in each 

class; 

 The upper limits to be invested in each class; 

 The extent to which prior professional advice needs to be sought from the 

Authority‟s Treasury Advisors prior to use; and 

 The minimum amount to be held in short term investments. 

Investment Objectives 
 

The Authority‟s investment decisions are governed by the need to ensure that all 
decisions are prudent and ensure the security of capital and liquidity of investments 
are paramount. 

 
The Authority will seek to ensure an optimum return on the investment of all surplus 
funds commensurate with the required levels of liquidity and security, having 
properly assessed the inherent risk associated with different investment options. 
 
The Authority will not engage in treasury borrowing activity solely for the purpose of 
investment or on-lending to make a return. 

 
Specified and Unspecified Investment Types 

 
In accordance with government guidance, investment instruments are broadly 
classified as Specified or Non Specified. 

 
An investment instrument is classed as Specified if: 

 

 the investment is denominated in Sterling; 

 the term of the investment is for 12 months or less; 

 the investment is made with a low risk counterparty, for example an institution 

with a high quality credit rating or is made with the United Kingdom 

Government or other public sector body (for example a local authority); and 

 the investment is not defined as capital expenditure. 

A Non Specified investment instrument is one that does not meet the definition of a 
Specified Investment and therefore have a higher level of treasury risk associated 
with them. Whilst the level of risk associated with these products is inherently 
higher, subject to appropriate due diligence and investigation, Non Specified 

Page 39



investments can offer some potential diversification within the Authority‟s 
investment portfolio. The Authority‟s treasury advisors, Capita, will be considered on 
any such options.  

 
The table attached at Annex 1 provides further guidance on Specified and Non 
Specified investments. 

 
Creditworthiness Policy and Liquidity 

 
 The Authority relies on credit ratings published by FITCH or Moody‟s two 

independent rating agencies to establish the credit quality of Counterparties. Credit 
ratings are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that prompt action can be taken 
to remove institutions whose ratings fall below the minimum threshold applied by 
the Authority. The proposed Counterparty criteria is appended to this report at 
Annex 2 

 
 Within the framework detailed in Annex 2, it is proposed that at any one time up to 

20% of investments will be retained in liquid instant access/ call accounts to ensure 
that there is adequate liquidity maintained to deal with unforeseen eventualities. 

 
Investment Strategy – Internally and Externally Managed Funds 

 
All investments managed internally will be undertaken in compliance with the 
framework outlined in this document. Due regard will be had to the wider cash flow 
movements and requirements of the Authority and forecast movement in interest 
rates. As detailed above the Authority will ensure that adequate funds are held as 
cash equivalents thereby allowing the Authority to address any unforeseen cash 
requirements or to take advantage of investment opportunities as they arise. 

 
The current view of the Authority‟s treasury management advisors, Link is that Bank 
Rate will remain at 0.25% until the second half of 2019 and therefore it is likely that 
investment returns will remain subdued over the financial year 2019/20. In support 
of this assertion Link has indicated that budgeted investment returns should be 
anticipated to be in line with the current Base Rate estimations, that is 0.25%.  

 
The Authority will seek to lock into fixed term deals (within the limits outlined in the 
counterparty criteria) at advantageous rates subject to the outlook for interest rates 
and the availability of such opportunities with high quality counterparties. 

 
Currently the Authority does not engage any external Fund Managers to invest 
monies on its behalf however this position will be periodically reviewed to establish 
whether this option provides any opportunities for diversification. Any such 
reconsideration will be made in conjunction with the Authority‟s treasury advisors 
and subject approval by the Director of Resources. 
 
Policy on the use of External Service Providers 
 
The Authority uses Link Asset Services as its external treasury management 
advisors. Whilst the responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with 
the Authority, the value in employing an external treasury provider is recognised as 
means by which it can acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 

Page 40



Notwithstanding this the Authority will ensure that there is no undue reliance on an 
external service provider. 
 
Reporting Arrangements 
 
The Authority will receive reports on Treasury Management activity as a minimum 
at three points during the year: a forward looking strategy will be submitted for 
approval, a mid- year Strategy review and a year- end report which will consider 
outturn performance in light of the strategy set at the start of the year. 
  

Page 41



ANNEX 2.1 
 

SPECIFIED AND NON SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 
 
Table 1 Specified Investments 
 

Investments Minimum Credit 
Rating 

Use 

Term deposits- UK banks and 
building societies 

See Annex 2 In house 

Term deposits – UK Government 
or Local Authorities 

High security although 
few local authorities 
are credit rated 

In house 

Call Account Facilities See Annex 2 In house 

Notice Account Facilities See Annex 2 In house 

Term Deposits – non UK banks 
and building societies 

See Annex 2 In house 

Debt Management Agency 
Deposit Facility 

UK Government 
backed 

In house 

Certificates of Deposit See Annex 2 In house 

Treasury Bills UK Government 
backed 

In house 

Money Market Funds AAA In house 

 
All Specified Investments must be sterling denominated and have maturities of up to 1 
year. 
  

Page 42



 
Table 2 Non Specified Investments 
 

Investments Minimum Credit 
Rating 

Use Maximum 
Duration 

Term deposits- UK banks and 
building societies (exceeding 365 
days) 

See Annex 2 In house 2 years 

Term deposits – UK Government 
or Local Authorities (exceeding 
365 days) 

High security 
although few 
local authorities 
are credit rated 

In house 2 years 

Term Deposits – non UK banks 
and building societies (exceeding 
365 days) 

See Annex 2 In house 2 years 

Certificates of Deposits  See Annex 2 In house – after 
consultation 
with Treasury 
Advisors 

2 years 

Callable Deposits See Annex 2 In house – after 
consultation 
with Treasury 
Advisors 

2 years 

Structured Deposits See Annex 2 In house – after 
consultation 
with Treasury 
Advisors 

2 years 

Forward Deposits See Annex 2 In house – after 
consultation 
with Treasury 
Advisors 

2 years in 
total 

 
  

Page 43



 
ANNEX 2.2 

COUNTERPARTY CRITERIA 
 

 
 
* Although the individual rating for the part nationalised banks fall below the criteria 
outlined above, due to the fact that they are part nationalised, as such these institutions 
take on the credit rating of the UK Government itself (UK Sovereign Rating AA) as 
deposits are essentially being made with the UK Government itself. 
  

Counterparty Category

Maximum 

Investment (£m)

Maximum 

Duration

Long Term Short Term Viability Rating Sovereign 

Government Backed    

Treasury Bills

£10m per 

investment 

(£70m in total) 2 years

Local Authorities, other Public 

Sector Bodies incl DMO

£10m per LA 

(£100m total) 2 years

Part Nationalised Banks 70 2 years

Money Market Funds

£10m per fund 

(£40m in total) On call

Combined Authority main Banker A 

F1 / P1 and 

above AA and above

Up to a maximum 

£100m On call

A+ and above

F1 / P1 and 

above AA and above

£10m per 

investment 

(£70m total per 

institution) 2 years

A 

F1 / P1 and 

above AA and above

£10m per 

investment 

(£30m total per 

institution) 12 months

A and above

F1 / P1 and 

above AA and above

£10m per 

investment 

(£40m in total) 12 months

A- and above

F1 / P1 and 

above AA and above

£5m per 

investment 

(£20m in total) 12 months

Building Societies 

Authorised institutions under the 

Banking Act 1987 which hold 

suitable credit ratings

Credit Rating

See Below*

AA Rated

AA Rated

AAA Rated

Page 44



ANNEX THREE 
 

THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2019/20 -2021/22 
 
 

 

Indicator Description 

18/19 
Forecast 
Outturn 

19/20 
Forward 
Estimate 

20/21 
Forward 
Estimate 

21/22 Forward 
Estimate 

            

Capital Spend 
(£m) 

Proposed capital spend to 
which the Authority plans 
to commit 254.26 297.85 236.08 42.98 

In year 
Requirement 

Additional borrowing 
requirement for capital 
expenditure 96.00 201.59 109.42 26.51 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 
(£m) 

This is the aggregation of 
historic and cumulative 
capital expenditure which 
has yet to be paid for 
through either capital or 
revenue resources 293.09 486.79 588.65 607.89 

Ratio Financing 
Cost to Income 
Stream 

Identified the impact and 
trend of revenue costs of 
capital financing decisions 
on the revenue budget 18.07% 18.61% 18.28% 17.96% 

Net Borrowing 
Requirement 
(£m) 

Represents the net 
investments or borrowing 
requirement based on the 
debt and investments held 87.66 70.24 59.42 48.60 

Authorised Limit 
for Borrowing 
(£m) 

Represents the absolute 
limit of borrowing that 
could be raised and 
afforded in the short term 
however this is likely to be 
unsustainable in the long 
term 293.09 486.79 588.65 607.89 

Operational Limit 
for Borrowing 
(£m) 

Represents the level 
beyond which debt is not 
normally expected to 
exceed 259.48 391.83 459.88 470.10 

Upper Limit for 
Fixed Interest 
Rate Exposure 

These limits seek to 
ensure that the Authority 
does not expose itself to 
an inappropriate level of 
interest rate risk 

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Upper Limit for 
Variable Interest 
Rate Exposure 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 

Gross Debt and 
the CFR (£m) 

This indicator can 
highlight where an 
authority may be 
borrowing in advance of 
need 112.03 316.55 429.23 459.29 

  

Page 45



ANNEX FOUR 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 

 

The Combined Authority 

 

 Approves the annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement; 

 Receives a mid year report and an outturn report on Treasury Management activity; 

 
The Director of Corporate Services 
 

 Draft and submit to the Combined Authority the Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement prior to the start of the financial year; 

 Implement and monitor these documents, 

 Draft and submit mid year and outturn reports to the Combined Authority for 

approval; 

 Maintain suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMP‟s) setting out the manner 

in which the Authority will seek to achieve its objectives. The TMP‟s will prescribe 

how the treasury activities will be managed and controlled; 

 Be responsible for the execution and administration of treasury management 

decisions; and 

 Act in accordance with the Council‟s Policy Statement and Treasury Management 

Practices, and also in accordance with CIPFA‟s Standard of Professional Practice 

on Treasury Management 

 
 
 
  

Page 46



ANNEX FIVE 
 

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151/ 73 OFFICER 
 
 

The S151 (responsible) officer  

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

 submitting budgets and budget variations; 

 receiving and reviewing management information reports; 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 

 recommending the appointment of external service providers;  

 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 
non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe;  

 ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in 
the long term and provides value for money; 

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority; 

 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on 
non-financial assets and their financing; 

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of 
risk compared to its financial resources; 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long 
term liabilities; 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees;  

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures 
taken on by an authority; 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above; 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following: - 

o Risk management, including investment and risk management criteria for any 
material non-treasury investment portfolios; 

o Performance measurement and management, including methodology and criteria 

for assessing the performance and success of non-treasury investments  

o Decision making, governance and organisation, including a statement of the 

governance requirements for decision making in relation to non-treasury 

investments; and arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due 

diligence is carried out to support decision making. 

Page 47



APPENDIX TWO 
 

LCRCA PROJECTED CAPITAL SPEND 2019/20 TO 2020/21 

     

LGF 1 Schemes 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

  

Transport         

Grant Funding Agreement Signed          

Halton Curve 2.91   2.91 

M58 Junction Improvements 0.68   0.68 

STEP 8.11 8.11            -    16.21 

A570 Linkway 1.65   1.65 

Silver Jubilee Bridge ( Phase 1) 0.72   0.72 

City Centre Strand Corridor 21.00 14.00  35.00 

Total LGF 1 Transport 35.06 22.11  57.17 

          

Skills         

LCR CA Approved          

LGF 1 Skills Projects Strand 1-4 0.02   0.02 

Liverpool South Work & Wellbeing (STEC) 
 

0.75  0.75 

Everton Learning & Skills Centre ( LCC) 0.29   0.29 

Pipeline      0.00 

Wirral Waters Skill Factory  3.20   3.20 

Total LGF 1 Skills 3.51 0.75 0.00 4.26 

          

Funding for uncommitted schemes 5.80 4.20 
 

9.99 

  

Total LGF 1 Schemes 44.37 27.05  71.42 

  

LGF 2 Schemes 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

  

Business Capital         

Grant Funding Agreement Signed          

Alstom 0.88   0.88 

Alchemy Phase 3 0.24   0.24 

LCR CA Approved        0.00 

Chancerygate ( Merseyreach) 0.03 0.92  0.95 

Littlewoods Studio 0.79 4.16  4.95 

Quarry Farm 0.47     0.47 

          

Business Growth        0.00 

LCR CA Approved        0.00 

Pall Mall 2.50 1.00  3.50 

Pipeline         

Maritime 3.26 1.78  5.04 

Page 48



LGF 2 Schemes (cont) 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

 £'m £'m £'m £'m 

Earsfield Park 1.21 1.59 
 

2.80 

Tower Road 
 

1.50 
 

1.50 

Funding for uncommitted schemes 1.92 2.87 
 

4.80 

  

Total LGF 2 Schemes 11.29 13.82 
 

25.11 

  

LGF 3 Schemes 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

          

Transport         

Grant Funding Agreement Signed          

Key Route Network 14.80   14.80 

Shakespeare Rail  3.38 3.41            -    6.79 

Pipeline         

Parkside Road 
 

6.90 
 

6.90 

Business Capital         

LCR CA Approved          

Atlantic Park  
 

0.77  0.77 

Digital Innovation 2.36 2.64  5.00 

Pipeline        

Unilever 0.30 0.43  0.72 

Funding for uncommitted schemes 10.19 15.29  25.48 

  

Total LGF 3 Schemes 31.03 29.43  60.46 

  

Gainshare Capital 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

  

Grant Funding Agreement Signed          

City Centre Connectivity ( Phase 2) 6.91 5.78  12.68 

LCR CA Approved         

Paddington Village Phase 1 9.00   9.00 

Shakespeare Playhouse 6.50   6.50 

Liverpool Film 1.40 0.60  2.00 

Pipeline        

Parkside Road  16.90  16.90 

Moss Nook  2.10  2.10 

South Whiston (Halsnead) 14.68 6.49  21.17 

Cruise Liner 3.50 16.50  20.00 

Funding for uncommitted schemes 1.68 2.53  4.21 

          

Total Gainshare Capital 43.66 50.90     94.56 

  

 

Page 49



Transport Single Pot 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

Transport Single Pot 26.50 
       

26.50                  -    53.00 

Transport Single Pot 26.50 
           

26.50               -    53.00 

          

Merseytravel Capital Schemes 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

  

Rail Capital Programme         

LSP Renewals -  RTI Platform screens 0.16 0.16 0.16 0.48 

Station Validators 1.17     1.17 

Spital 0.37     0.37 

Bromborough Station P&R 0.10 0.08   0.18 

Park & Ride Schemes - Lea Green & Widnes 0.04 1.20   1.24 

LTRS  0.60     0.60 

Prescott Lifts 3.45     3.45 

Funding for uncommitted schemes     0.39 1.43 1.82 

Total Rail Programme 5.90 1.83 1.59 9.32 

          

Bus Capital Programme         

Spellow Lane/County Road 0.19     0.19 

Rice Lane/Orrell Lane 0.36     0.36 

Black Bull 0.39     0.39 

City Centre Duke Street  0.14     0.14 

Refurbishment of Tunnels Building 0.02     0.02 

Accessibility Upgrades 0.09     0.09 

Life Expired Bus Shelters - based on H&S priority 0.07 0.20 0.20 0.47 

Journey Planner Upgrade 0.12     0.12 

Funding for uncommitted schemes 0.60 0.39 1.43 2.43 

Total Bus Programme 1.99 0.59 1.63 4.21 

          

Ferries Capital Programme         

Renew Existing Vessels Engine Control Systems 0.27     0.27 

Fixed Fire System Renewal Iris then Snowdrop 0.03     0.03 

Bridges & Pontoons 0.25 0.20   0.45 

Total Ferries Programme 0.55 0.20 0.00 0.75 

          

Mersey Tunnels Capital Programme         

SCADA - Upgrade of Refuge Control System 0.25     0.25 

Qway  North John Street Transformers 0.64     0.64 

Vehicle Replacement Programme  0.05     0.05 

CCTV  0.35     0.35 

Vent Station Interior Refurbishment Programme 0.20     0.20 

Queensway Tunnel Rewire Build 0.29     0.29 

Bidston Moss Viaduct -Gore Link 1.20     1.20 

Page 50



Mersey Tunnels Capital Programme (cont) 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

 £’m £’m £’m £’m 

Queensway/ Georges Dock Concrete Repairs 0.55     0.55 

 
KWay - Asset Protection (liverpool Waters) 0.03     0.03 

Qway HV Switches at North John Street (&Transformers post 18/19) 0.24     0.24 

Wallasey Compound & Vehicle Wash 0.17     0.17 

Kingsway Retaining Walls 0.23     0.23 

Radio System Upgrade 0.07     0.07 

Kinsgsway Renew Jet fans 0.50     0.50 

Kingsway Replace sump pump drainage pipework 2.75     2.75 

Kingsway Transformer & HV switch Renewals 0.60     0.60 

Inspections & Assessments 0.10     0.10 

ICT Network Equipment Renewals 0.55     0.55 

Funding for uncommitted schemes            -    5.95 5.18 11.13 

Total Tunnels Programme 8.77 5.95 5.18 19.89 

          

Hubs Capital Programme         

Queen Square Facility Building Refurb 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.60 

Total Hubs Programme 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.60 

          

IT Capital Programme         

Desktop Computers/Laptops/Refresh 0.04 0.05 0.05 0.14 

Office 365 Project 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.18 

Data Network Refresh 0.15 0.20  0.35 

Data Storage Refresh  0.30  0.30 

SATA disk Replacement 0.10 
 

 0.10 

Cisco UCD Blade Refresh     0.15 0.15 0.30 

Veronis 0.08   0.08 

SOS Telephony Upgrade 0.02   0.02 

DIVA Upgrade  0.20  -    0.20 

Core Telephony Refresh      0.20 0.20 

Transforming Ticketing through Smart Technology 1.20     1.20 

Total IT Capital Programme 1.67 0.96 0.46 3.09 

          

Corporate Capital Programme         

Support Services 0.22 0.22 0.12 0.56 

Total Corporate Programme 0.22 0.22 0.12 0.56 

          

Rolling Stock Capital Programme  110.00 94.02 26.50 230.52 

  

Total Merseytravel Capital Programme Spend 129.30 103.97 35.68 268.95 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Transforming Cities  

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

          

Pipeline         

Liverpool City Region Green Travel Routes Corridors Phase 1 2.35 2.26 
 

4.61 

Transforming Cities (cont) 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

 £'m £'m £'m £'m 

Transforming Ticketing through Smart Technology -    1.20 0.90 2.10 

New Mersey Ferry Vessel(s) 6.40 4.50 6.40 17.30 

Development Funding 2.95 2.95 -    5.90 

  

Total Transforming Cities  11.70 10.91 7.30 29.91 

  

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 297.85 262.58 42.98 603.41 

  
   

  

FUNDED BY: 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£'m £'m £'m £'m 

          

Borrowing 201.59 109.42 26.50 337.51 

Capital Grants 83.28 143.21 7.30 233.79 

Revenue Contributions 7.50 5.95 5.18 18.63 

Reserves 5.48 4.00 4.00 13.48 

TOTAL FUNDING 297.85 262.58 42.98 603.41 

Page 52



APPENDIX THREE 
 

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Capital Strategy 

 

1.0 Purpose 

1.0.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) requires all 
organisations operating under the Prudential Code for Capital Finance (the 
Prudential Code) to produce a capital strategy to demonstrate that capital 
expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with organisational 
objectives, are affordable, take proper account of stewardship, sustainability, value 
for money and prudence. As an organisation that operates under the aegis of the 
Prudential Code, the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (the Authority) is 
required to produce a capital strategy. 

1.0.2 The capital strategy provides a high level overview of how capital expenditure, 
capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the achievement of 
the Authority‟s priorities and service provision. It also provides an overview of how 
the associated risks are managed and the implications for future financial stability. 
The document provides an overview of the governance processes for approving 
and monitoring capital activity. 

1.1 Scope 

1.1. This capital strategy covers all capital expenditure and capital investment decisions 
for not only the Authority but also those entered into under group arrangements. As 
such this capital strategy applies to Merseytravel and its subsidiary companies. 

1.1.2 For expenditure to qualify as capital expenditure and therefore be under the scope 
of this document it must be: 

 Expenditure that is incurred on the acquisition or creation of a new asset or 
expenditure that enhances the life or value of an existing asset in accordance with 
relevant account standards; 

 Expenditure that meets one of the definitions specified in regulation made under the 
2003 Local Government Act <check>; or 

 Expenditure for which a direction has been made by the Secretary of State that 
allows the expenditure to be treated as capital. 

1.2 Liverpool City Region Context 

1.2.1 The Combined Authority approved a corporate plan for the period 2018-2020 in 
October 2018. The plan is structured around eight priority themes: 

 Priority One: A dynamic, prosperous, inclusive economy which benefits every part 
of the city region; 

 Priority Two: Jobs, skills and career opportunities for all; 

Page 53



 Priority Three: A high-speed digital network that connects the whole region to the 
world; 

 Priority Four: A transport network that connects people, goods and Business; 

 Priority Five: Good quality and affordable housing; 

 Priority Six: A greener and cleaner place to live; 

 Priority Seven: A world class culture and visitor experience; 

 Priority Eight: More decisions taken locally. 

1.2.2 Key priorities are underpinned by a vision statement and a series of key 
deliverables central to the achievement of the overarching priorities. To help the 
Combined Authority deliver it is vital that there is a clear and coherent framework 
through which to make capital investment. At the CA level strategic investments will 
be driven by the Single Investment Strategy and associated assurance framework 
and the Key Route Network asset management plans. At the Merseytravel, key 
strategies including the Tunnels, Bus Infrastructure, Ferries and Long Term Rail 
Strategies will help inform and shape capital requirements. 

1.3 Capital Expenditure 

1.3.1 Whilst at the Authority level, most investment interventions are focussed on 
supporting its growth strategy and devolution aims, below this level, Merseytravel 
which is the strategic transport advisory body and delivery arm, is responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of its and the Authority‟s major transport assets. 
Whilst Merseytravel has recourse to some of its own resources to support 
investment, this ability is limited and most requests for funding are channelled up 
through the Authority. 

1.3.2 The size of the capital programme is influenced by the availability of funding 
sources and capital financing costs, including the availability of revenue resources 
to support the full implications of capital expenditure; both borrowing costs and 
running costs after any grant funding is applied. 

1.4 Funding Streams  

1.4.1 The Authority‟s capital investment decisions can be funded from a number of 
sources, the key components of which are detailed below; 

 Government grants – this is the single largest source of capital funding received 
by the Authority. The key government grants received directly by the Authority 
include Transforming Cities Funding, transport funding from the Department for 
Transport and the Gain Share/ Investment Fund monies received in support of the 
Authority‟s devolution agreement. The Authority has agreed with government to 
have a single pot approach to capital and the funds that form part of the Single Pot 
are governed by the Authority‟s Single Investment framework. In addition the 
Authority acts as the Accountable Body for the Local Growth Funds for which local 
agreement has been reached with the LEP whereby these funds for part of the 
Single Investment Fund. Merseytravel is not a significant grant recipient in its own 

Page 54



right and therefore grants to Merseytravel will flow via the CA, either as a result of 
work commissioned by the CA or as a result of a bid made by Merseytravel against 
the SIF. 

 Prudential borrowing – under the Prudential Code the Authority is permitted to 
determine its own borrowing requirement (which includes the need for borrowing 
that may exist within Merseytravel), provided the borrowing proposed is affordable, 
prudent and cost effective. Whilst the Authority is governed by the Prudential 
Framework, in common with all other Mayoral Combined Authorities, the Authority 
has agreed a debt cap with HM Treasury which limits the absolute level of 
borrowing that can be incurred. Where this type of funding is applied there are 
revenue implications in the form of financing cost. 

 Reserves – both the Combined Authority and Merseytravel have recourse to 
specific reserves to support capital investment. Whilst the Authority has significant 
reserves that are earmarked for inclusion within the SIF, the current level of 
resources is not forecast to increase, rather they are on a downward trajectory as 
there has been a significant reliance on reserves to support the Merseytravel capital 
programme over the last couple of years and therefore these should be applied 
judiciously. 

 Revenue funding – the Authority is permitted to utilise revenue resources to fund 
capital schemes however given the limited availability of revenue funding more 
generally for the Authority it is not a significant source of capital funding and would 
normally be used to support specific smaller scale initiatives. The only area in which 
a significant and sustained use is made of revenue to support capital investment is 
in respect of the Mersey Tunnels whereby use of tolls is directed by statute. 

 Capital receipts – the Authority and Merseytravel are able to generate capital 
receipts through the sale of surplus assets, such as land and buildings. The use of 
such receipts is governed by statute and therefore must be used for capital 
investment, unless capitalisation directives are permitted. Both organisations hold 
limited levels of capital receipts and by virtue of the fact that both organisations hold 
significant infrastructure asset bases, their capacity to generate new receipts is 
constrained. To this end the first call on any capital receipts to support capital 
investment are for invest to save initiatives. 

1.5 Governance Arrangements 

1.5.1 The Strategic Investment Fund (SIF) has been established to manage the public 
funding that the Combined Authority receives following the devolution agreement 
agreed with government in 2015 and the Growth Deal Funds for which agreement 
has been reached with the Liverpool City Region Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) for the Authority to manage these funds. 

1.5.2 The Combined Authority‟s Strategic Investment Fund Strategy defines and outlines 
the Authority‟s investment strategy for the SIF, including its principles and priorities, 
approval process and fund-recycling model. 

1.5.3 The core objective of the Investment Strategy is to ensure that investment made by 
the Combined Authority is most effectively targeted at interventions and 
opportunities that help deliver its strategic aims and help drive inclusive growth, 
social value, tackle market failure maximise value for money and make a financial 
return into the SIF.  

Page 55



1.5.4 The Investment Strategy clearly details the principles against which the SIF will 
operate and the economic sectors in which the region has a competitive advantage 
and which will drive future regional success. 

1.5.5 Overlaying the Investment Strategy is the SIF Assurance Framework, which has 
been designed to meet the requirements of the Single Pot Assurance Guidance 
published by MHCLG and managed by HM Government‟s Cities & Local Growth 
Unit. This documents covers; 

 The context, scope and purpose of the assurance framework; 

 the governance structures of the Combined Authority, investment approach and 
transparency mechanisms that will apply to decision making; 

 the decision making procedures for funding; and 

 the approach to monitoring and evaluation. 

1.5.6 The process for making investment decisions through the SIF is as follows: 

 All projects are developed in conjunction with the Investment Team to ensure they 
have a mesh with the Authority‟s Investment Strategy; 

 Projects are subject to development of business case in accordance with HM 
Treasury Green Book principles; 

 An internal panel of senior officer s considers projects at outline stage. This group 
has a right of veto and may use this to refuse a project should they believe it would 
breach SIF governance and/ or run counter to good economic development policy; 

 Detail diligence will be undertaken on all projects and an external appraisal report 
will be completed; 

 The Investment Panel will conduct interim and final reviews of projects and provide 
advice  and commentary on the merits of a project to the Combined Authority and if 
necessary make recommendations for modifications; 

 Based on the recommendations of the Investment Panel, projects will be submitted 
to the Combined Authority for approval. 

1.5.7 Monitoring of delivery and outcomes is managed by the Corporate Programme 
Management Office who reports performance through to the Programme Delivery 
Board, which is comprised of senior officers within the Combined Authority and the 
LEP. Dedicated Finance resource exists to monitor SIF programme on an ongoing 
basis and feeds into the reporting rhythm. 

1.5.8 Monthly capital monitoring of spend is undertaken and reported through to 
Merseytravel and the CA respectively.  

1.5.9 Whilst all significant and major capital expenditure plans for the Authority are 
channelled through the SIF, Merseytravel separately has a requirement to invest in 
and maintain its asset base and the Mersey Tunnels, which it manages and 
operates on behalf of the Combined Authority. Maintenance programmes and 
investment requirements for Merseytravel assets are determined in parallel with the 
service and revenue budget planning process within the framework of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. 

 

 

Page 56



1.6 Long Term Capital Plans 

1.6.1 The table below shows the capital plans for both the Combined Authority and 
Merseytravel for the period through to 2021/22. 

Combined Authority and Merseytravel Investment Plans 

 2018/19 
Revised 

£’m 

2019/20 

£’m 

2020/21 

£’m 

2021/22 

£’m 

Total 

£’m 

Combined Authority 

LGF 1 

LGF 2 

LGF 3 

Gainshare Capital 

Transport Single Pot 

Transforming Cities 

Merseytravel 

Rail 

Bus 

Rolling Stock Replacement 

Ferries 

Tunnels 

Hubs 

IT 

Smart Ticketing 

Corporate Strategy 

Corporate Services 

 

33.75 

2.59 

11.49 

8.75 

26.50 

- 

 

13.56 

1.55 

143.27 

0.40 

3.92 

- 

0.46 

- 

7.55 

0.47 

 

44.37 

11.29 

31.03 

43.66 

26.50 

11.70 

 

5.90 

1.99 

110.00 

0.55 

8.77 

0.20 

0.47 

1.20 

- 

0.22 

 

 

27.05 

13.82 

29.43 

50.90 

26.50 

10.91 

 

1.83 

0.59 

94.02 

0.20 

5.95 

0.20 

0.96 

- 

- 

0.22 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

7.30 

 

1.59 

1.63 

26.50 

- 

5.18 

0.20 

0.46 

- 

- 

0.12 

 

 

105.17 

27.70 

71.95 

103.31 

79.50 

29.91 

 

22.88 

5.76 

373.79 

1.15 

23.82 

0.60 

2.35 

1.20 

7.55 

1.03 

Total Capital Expenditure 254.26 297.85 262.58 42.98 857.67 

Financed by: 

Borrowing 

 

116.00 

 

201.59 

 

109.42 

 

26.50 

 

453.51 

Page 57



Capital Grants 

Revenue/ Reserves 

 

97.36 

40.90 

 

83.28 

12.98 

143.21 

9.95 

7.30 

9.18 

331.15 

73.01 

Total Funding 254.26 297.85 262.58 42.98 857.67 

 

1.6.2 The table above reflects the Combined Authority‟s investment decisions that were 
submitted as part of the initial SIF call launched in December 2016 or schemes that 
were commissioned by the Authority prior to this. A further call was launched in 
November 2018 and as such as the output of this process is known, and relevant 
approvals have been granted the programme will be updated. 

1.6.3 The main schemes are detailed in the Combined Authority and Merseytravel budget 
reports. 

1.7 Investments 

1.7.1 The Authority may undertake two distinct types of investment; treasury 
management investments and service/ commercial investments. 

1.7.2 Treasury management investment activity arises as a consequence of managing 
the organisation‟s cashflows. For these investments, security and liquidity of 
investments are the primary considerations when making such decisions, ahead of 
any consideration of investment yield generated. Treasury management 
investments are governed by the Authority‟s Treasury Management Policy and its 
Annual Investment Strategy. The Authority‟s counterparty criteria provides a 
framework against which treasury investments are made. The approach is informed 
by the creditworthiness work undertaken by the Authority‟s treasury advisors, Link 
Asset Services. 

1.7.3 Service or commercial investments by contrast are those investments made by an 
organisation outside of the day to day treasury management activity which could be 
either made in support of service provision, for example economic regeneration or 
commercial whereby the investments have been undertaken purely for the purpose 
of generating financial returns. 

1.7.4 There is a regulatory and statutory recognition that organisations may make 
investments for policy reasons outside their treasury management activity. To 
ensure that all investment decisions are made in a structured an informed manner 
with due consideration to both the risks and rewards stemming from that decision, 
the CIPFA Treasury Management Code covers both types of investment. 

1.7.5 The Authority‟s non-treasury investments are primarily aimed at supporting the 
organisation‟s service objectives and the achievement of its devolution aims and 
such investments will naturally flow out of the SIF generated schemes. As stated 
above, the core objective of the Investment Strategy is to ensure that investment 
made by the Combined Authority is most effectively targeted at interventions and 
opportunities that help deliver its strategic aims and help drive inclusive growth, 
social value, tackle market failure maximise value for money and make a financial 
return into the SIF. To ensure  

Page 58



1.7.6 Whilst investments through the SIF will aim to ensure that there is a positive reflow, 
the key driver in these investments is not to generate a financial return to support 
the ongoing revenue budget for the Combined Authority but to ensure the continued 
viability of the investment fund. As the SIF is funded primarily through grant, it is 
pertinent to seek to maximise the benefits arising from investments flowing back to 
the Combined Authority thus allowing the fund to be more sustainable over the 
longer term. 

1.7.7 The Authority‟s non-treasury investments will vary in shape, size and structure and 
will be tailored for each individual deal. In accordance with the governance 
framework outlined above, a significant level of work will be undertaken by the 
Investment Team to develop and shape deals and undertake necessary due 
diligence which will inform the commercial negotiation and inform the final deal. 

1.7.8 As all non-treasury investments will flow through the SIF process, the review, and 
scrutiny and ultimately approval process will be in accordance with the SIF 
Investment Strategy and SIF Assurance Framework. The governance 
arrangements around interventions funded through the SIF are detailed above. 

1.8 Treasury Management 

 Governance 

1.8.1 The Combined Authority has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 
Sector Code of Practice and formally adopted a treasury management policy 
statement as part of its annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement, which 
was approved by the Combined Authority at its meeting on 2 February 2018. 

1.8.2 Under the Local Government Act 2003 local authorities are permitted to determine 
their own programmes for capital investment and associated borrowing 
requirements, provided they have regard to CIPFA‟s Prudential Code for Capital 
Financing in Local Authorities.  

1.8.3 The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure that there is a clear framework 
for ensuring capital plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable and that treasury 
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice. In 
support of the decision making process the Prudential Code sets out a number of 
prudential indicators that should support local decision making with regards to the 
Authority‟s capital expenditure plans and it is the duty of the Director of Corporate 
Services (the Section 73 Officer) to ensure that this information is made available to 
support decision making by the Combined Authority. Key issues that should be 
considered are: 

 Affordability; 

 Prudence; 

 Value for money; 

 Stewardship of assets;  

 Alignment with service objectives; and 

 Practicality. 
 

Page 59



1.8.4 The requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 and the Prudential Code apply 
equally to the Combined Authority however; there is an additional requirement for 
Mayoral Combined Authorities to agree overall debt caps with HM Treasury. As 
such there is an additional dynamic for the Authority in considering prudence as any 
increases in the absolute need to borrow above the agreed cap, even if still 
affordable within the confines of the Prudential Code would, require approval of HM 
Treasury. 

1.8.5 The Combined Authority retains overall responsibility for review and approval of the 
annual Treasury Management Strategy, the midyear report and the outturn report. 
Day to day management of the Treasury Management function is delegated to the 
Director of Corporate Services. Details of the scheme of delegation are contained 
within the Authority‟s Treasury Management Practices. 

 Affordability 

1.8.6 Fundamental to any assessment of the affordability of the Combined Authority‟s 
capital plans is the extent to which the revenue costs associated with servicing new 
and existing debt can be sustained within the available budget. A significant 
proportion of the Authority‟s capital plans relate to strategic investments through the 
Strategic Investment Fund which is essentially funded by grant. Whilst the 
Authority‟s Investment Strategy does not preclude borrowing in support of this 
activity, this has not been factored into medium term plans and as such the 
requirement to borrow, within the debt cap agreed with HM Treasury focuses on the 
servicing of historic transport debt and other strategic investments in support of 
transport arising from its role as the Strategic Transport Authority. 

 Prudence  

1.8.7 The Authority is required to make reasonable estimates of total capital expenditure 
that it plans to incur for the next and at least the following two years. The Prudential 
Code requires the Authority to ensure that all capital expenditure, investment and 
borrowing decisions are prudent and affordable and take account of the resources 
available to fund such schemes or the implications of borrowing to fund them. The 
aim is to ensure that requirement to repay borrowing is factored into the overall 
consideration of the organisation‟s fiscal sustainability. 

1.8.8 In respect of the Authority‟s external debt, there are two key indicators, which the 
Authority is required to complete for the forthcoming and two successive years; the 
Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary. The Authorised Boundary represents 
the absolute maximum the Authority could borrow and therefore should not be 
varied during the year whereas the Operational Boundary should encompass all 
anticipated borrowing and in year use and should incorporate sufficient headroom 
for the Authority to satisfy in year requirements.  

1.8.9 The Authority‟s Authorised and Operational are detailed below. 

 2019/20 

£’m 

2020/21 

£’m 

2021/22 

£’m 

Authorised Limit 486.79 588.65 607.89 

Operational Boundary 391.83 459.88 470.10 

Page 60



 

1.8.10 The Authority‟s Treasury Management Strategy Statement, which is also forms part 
of the overall budget report, details the Authority‟s borrowing and financing plans for 
its capital programme over the period through to 2021/22, its borrowing limits and 
debt repayment strategy. To avoid duplication of content the reader is referred to 
Appendix 1 for more detail. 

 Value for Money 

1.8.11 As detailed above a significant proportion of the Authority‟s capital programme 
relates to the delivery of the strategic investment priorities detailed in the Authority‟s 
Investment Strategy. All such capital expenditure is incurred on the back of a 
rigorous application, assessment and evaluation process as detailed in the Single 
Investment Framework. Funding provided through the SIF is essentially gap funding 
aimed at supporting strategic interventions. As the assessment and evaluation of all 
schemes through the SIF follow the principles of the HM Treasury Green Book, 
value for money is integral to the decision making process. 

1.9 Skills and Knowledge 

1.9.1 The Director of Corporate Services (Section 73 Officer) who is a Qualified 
Accountant has overall responsibility for the Authority‟s Treasury Management 
activity and overall capital programme. The capital programme and treasury 
management strategy are managed by Qualified Accountants with specific day to 
day delegations to individual members within the Finance Team with extensive 
experience within these designated areas. Emphasis is placed on continuing 
professional development and staff are encouraged to attend events which help 
maintain current knowledge and understanding of sectoral developments. 

1.9.2 Commercial investment decisions are led by the Authority‟s Investment Team. This 
is a multi-disciplinary team with significant experience in financial services and the 
structuring of corporate finance. This team also has access to a range of specialist 
advisory support from a specifically procured framework contract to access 
specialist advice as necessary. The team will work closely with the Finance and 
Legal teams to ensure that specific regulatory or legislative requirements are 
understood and adhere to prior to deals being closed. 

1.9.3 The Combined Authority has access to a range of advisors to assist in the operation 
of its treasury and investment activity. The Authority uses Link Asset Services as its 
external treasury management advisors.  The Authority recognises that 
responsibility for treasury management decisions remain with the organisation and 
seeks to ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon external service providers.  
Notwithstanding this, the Authority recognises that there is value in employing 
external providers of treasury management services in order to acquire access to 
specialist skills and resources. The Investment Team has access to a range of 
specialist advisors through its framework, including Legal, Financial, sectoral 
specific advisors and economic appraisers who will be utilised as necessary for the 
purpose of supporting investment opportunities brought forward. 

 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:  The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined 

Authority  
 
Meeting:     1 February 2019 
 
Authority/Authorities Affected:  All 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT 

AND PORTFOLIO HOLDER: TRANSPORT AND AIR QUALITY  
 

TRANSFORMING CITIES FUND: 
APPROVAL TO RELEASE UP TO £500,000 OF DEVELOPMENT FUNDING 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report seeks the approval of the LCR Combined Authority to commit £465,000 

of the £500,000 Transforming Cities Fund, which was allocated to project 
development in July 2018, to enable two schemes to progress to the next stage of 
design and development.  Both projects could meet the aims of the Transforming 
Cities Fund. 

 
1.2 This report should be read alongside the update report on the Transforming Cities 

Fund on the January agenda.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority:  
 

(a) Agree to grant up to £465,000 from the Transforming Cities Development 
Fund to support: 

 
(i) Liverpool City Region Green Bus corridors (up to £215,000);   
(ii) Liverpool City Region Cycle & Walking Network (the “Cycle Path 

Project”, up to £250,000); 
 

(b) decline support for Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options for the 
reasons noted in paragraph 3.4; and 

 
(c) delegate authority to the Combined Authority’s Head of Paid Service to 

conclude satisfactory terms of the ensuing grant funding agreements.    
 
2.1 Note that this report does not represent a Key Decision.  Both projects currently 

relate to pre-development feasibility studies and no ground works are required at 
this stage. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 When the Combined Authority approved the first Transforming Cities Fund 

commissioning round in July 2018, it made £500,000 of development funding 
available this financial year.  As this commission pre-dated the development of the 
new Strategic Investment Fund Assurance Framework, the original SIF Round 1 
Assurance Framework (2016) and application forms applied.  This approach 
requires the Combined Authority to take final funding decisions on both 
development funding and on full funding proposals, having regard to the agreed 
commissioning text inviting those schemes to come forward. 

 
3.2 The £500,000 in development funding was to allow Merseytravel, on behalf of the 

LCR CA, to accelerate scheme development work such as options testing and 
outline design work.  This was with the aim of bringing candidate schemes that 
support the three themes identified, to a better state of readiness and in a stronger 
position for formal commissioning at a future round. 

 
3.3 Merseytravel received four development funding bids:  
 

(a) A Green Commuter Bus Corridor scheme; 
(b) A Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network; 
(c) Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options; and 
(d) Hydrogen fuelling options study. 

 
3.4 All four applications were internally reviewed against the policy and deliverability 

criteria set out in the Transforming Cities Fund commissioning text agreed by the 
Combined Authority in July 20181, in line with the Single Investment Fund 
assurance framework of November 2016.  The review included an assessment of 
whether the proposed feasibility study could lead to a deliverable future project and 
whether that future project could meet both the objectives and timescales of the 
Transforming Cities Fund.  

 
3.5 The four submissions were as follows: 

 
3.5.1 Liverpool City Region Green Bus corridors (£215,000) 

 
The proposal is to undertake a feasibility study to identify how to transform 
and improve the busy commuter bus corridors of the A57, A562, B5178, A59 
and A567.   
 
80% of the public transport journeys in LCR are by bus but only 10% are 
commuter journeys.  The project aims to address this and identify ways in 
which the commuter journey by bus can be improved and increase the 
interconnectivity between walking, cycling and bus routes.   

 
The project will use feasibility funding to explore highway infrastructure 
measures to:  

 

                                            
1
 https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/documents/s27419/Item%208%20-

%20Report%20and%20Appendix.pdf  

Page 64

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/documents/s27419/Item%208%20-%20Report%20and%20Appendix.pdf
https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/documents/s27419/Item%208%20-%20Report%20and%20Appendix.pdf


(a) Improve traffic flow and speed-up bus journeys;  
(b) Provide traffic signal upgrades to prioritise bus and improve journey 

times;  
(c) Improve ticketing options and access improvements to speed up 

boarding;  
(d) Improved bus stops, information systems, and bus infrastructure in 

key areas including specific options appraisal work around Prescot 
Bus Station (enhancing accessibility by linking in with Shakespeare 
North which will create increased demand), Page Moss Interchange 
(junction improvement and accessibility) and St Helens Bus Station 
(capacity improvements); 

(e) Reduce congestion and improve air quality; and 
(f) Options to decarbonize the network. 

 
The total cost of the feasibility study is £325k; £215k from TCF with £110k 
matched funding.  It is proposed that Merseytravel co-ordinate the feasibility 
study on behalf of the Local Authority partners and commission all of the 
works.    
 
In the application process, Knowsley and St Helens submitted specific 
additional proposals (see above), which, when assessed, were deemed to fit 
well with the green corridor proposition and are included here for 
consideration.   

  

Activity   Lead Partner TCF 
£k 

Match 
£k 

Sum 
£k 

Green Bus Routes Corridor interventions  Merseytravel 100 100 200 

Page Moss Interchange – (A57) Liverpool 
Road/Stockbridge Lane/Princess Drive  

 Knowsley 
MBC 

50 0 50 

Prescot Town Centre – (A57) Bus Facilities 
and Public Realm Improvements 

 Knowsley 
MBC 

15 0 15 

St Helens Town Centre Gateway (A57)  St Helens 
MBC  

50 10 60 

TOTAL   215 110 325 

 
Fit with Transforming Cities  
In policy terms, it is considered that the submission accords with the 
commissioning text in terms of improving reliability and attractiveness of core 
bus routes.  It fits directly with the terms of Theme 2 of the TCF commission:- 
 
Theme 2: Improving the appeal of public transport, and particularly bus, 
against private transport) 
 
This will principally entail a programme of enhancements to the city region’s 
bus highway infrastructure on core commuting routes to the main growth 
areas that exist or which are developing.  The focus will be on technological 
enhancements to secure more competitive journey times, operational 
efficiencies, lower levels of congestion and improved air quality.  

 
The proposal is capable of delivery within the Transforming Cities Fund 
timescales, an equally significant criterion.   

Page 65



 
3.5.2 Liverpool City Region Cycle & Walking Network project (the “Cycle 

Path Project”) (£250,000) 
 

Merseytravel on behalf of the LCWIP Steering Group (LCR Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan) requested £250,000 from the Transforming 
Cities Fund, to produce an outline design for six corridors within the wider 
LCR Cycle Network. 
   
The proposal is linked to the successful ERDF SUD funding bid, which the 
Combined Authority considered in December 2018, to deliver seven initial 
corridors of cycling and walking improvements across the region.  The ERDF 
SUD bid also has a TCF bid component as match to the ERDF.  This 
proposal is the second phase in the rollout of a strategic cycling and walking 
network for the LCR.  
  
The corridors identified for this feasibility study are:  
 
(a) City Centre - Childwall 
(b) Knowsley Cycle Route (Kirkby – Speke) 
(c) Birkenhead – Ellesmere Port 
(d Bootle-Vauxhall-City Centre Active Travel Improvements 
(e) Lea Green Sustainable Transport Hub 
(f) Daresbury Cycle Links 
(g) By developing these six corridors to outline design stage, it will 

provide options for the selection of appropriate routes and the 
interventions that could be included. 

 
An audit of the existing cycle and walking facilities will be undertaken for 
each corridor and then costed options for the routes (that adhere to the LCR 
Design Guide standard) will be provided.  The work will inform not only the 
route of the six new paths but also ensure that the design of the new routes:   
 
(h) will be built to ambitious standards, aspiring to full or partial 

segregation for cyclists wherever possible, and incorporating 
innovative new technologies such as early-release signals for cyclists; 
and 

(i) will look to introduce a range of other innovative cycle infrastructure 
measures, including, for example, Dutch style roundabouts and cycle 
priority junctions, where feasible. 

 
The total LCR network comprises 31 additional corridors of walking and 
cycling routes which will be delivered over the next decade.  
 
The LCR network investment is inextricably linked to the existing cycle and 
walking route network and future plans to provide local connections and/or 
crossing points to the key road network.  Delivery of this will involve working 
closely with the Local Authorities to ensure that the LCR network is as 
accessible as possible. 
 
The estimated cost of the feasibility study is £250,000 and it will be prepared 
by an external consultant under the guidance of the Merseytravel LTP team.  

Page 66



The consultant will be procured under either Lot 7 or 11 of the Merseytravel 
Multi-contractor framework on behalf of the Local Authorities.  This will 
provide a consistent approach to the design work and deliver economies of 
scale compared with each LA commissioning the work separately.  
 
The cost of delivering the wider LCR Cycle Network route network is 
estimated to be up to £100m.  This is a highly indicative based on an 
approximate cost of £10m per corridor (£1m per km).  However, by 
commissioning this feasibility work, a more accurate cost for the corridors will 
become available.   
 
Fit with Transforming Cities  
In policy terms, it is considered that this accords with the commissioning text 
in allowing emerging cycling and walking schemes to be worked up to the 
next stage of designs and feasibility development.  It fits directly with the 
terms of Theme 3 of the TCF commission: 

 
Theme 3: Intervening for health and wellbeing 
 
This theme is focussed on decarbonising the transport network, reducing 
emissions and encouraging more healthy forms of travel.  It covers the 
development of a comprehensive network of high quality, cycle and walking 
ways, which will link key residential and employment areas.  The theme also 
includes measures to reduce emissions and pollution from motorised 
transport. 
 
The proposal is capable of delivery within the Transforming Cities Fund 
timescales, an equally significant criterion.   

 
3.5.3 Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options (£190,000) 

 
Liverpool and Wirral Councils requested £190,000 from the Transforming 
Cities Fund, to undertake a feasibility study into mass transit (i.e. innovative 
pod-style technology) feasibility: 
 
(a) Liverpool City Centre Transit Scheme – to initially link Paddington, 

King’s Dock, Bramley Moore and Lime Street with potential 
subsequent phases; and 

(b) Zero Emission Smarter Transit Feeder Vehicles – feeder system for 
development areas in East Wirral/Wirral Waters into existing public 
transport offer and linked to reduced car parking provision for new 
development. 

 
The technology is not specified for either system.   
 
Fit with Transforming Cities  
From a policy perspective, this is not considered an eligible submission, 
based on the information contained within the application.  Whilst the 
application could, with further elaboration, have improved its fit with TCF 
criteria, it did not provide sufficient comfort over the Sponsors’ ability to 
deliver the final project within the Transforming Cities timescale nor the 
deliverability of the proposal overall.  The focus of the TCF commissioning 

Page 67



text is on enhancing the capacity and effectiveness and quality of the existing 
rail network.   

 
Theme 1: Improving and expanding the public transport network to meet new 
areas of demand 
 
Transforming intra-city regional rail connectivity and exploiting the city 
region’s rail network to maximise the attractiveness and uptake of the new, 
bespoke rolling stock on the Merseyrail network from 2019/20 onwards.  This 
will improve the quality, capacity and resilience of the network, particularly at 
Liverpool Central Station, which serves the main areas of growth in the city 
centre.  
 
It is recommended that this proposal does not proceed in the current format.  
The proposal could be reviewed and potentially resubmitted for SIF Round II 
development funding.  
 

3.5.4 Hydrogen fuelling options study 
 

A proposal was received requesting part funding towards a feasibility study 
to identify the steps necessary and investment required to bring an 
operational fleet of approximately 30 hydrogen buses into service in LCR.  
The study will determine the price point at which the utilisation of hydrogen 
buses becomes commercially viable for the bus operators.     
 
The bid will proceed with funding from the Mayoral Priorities allocation.  
 

3.6 All final funding decisions on Transforming Cities Fund applications rest with the 
Combined Authority.  This means that the approval of the Authority is required to 
release this funding as per the recommendations set out in this report.  

 
 
4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Financial 
 

The Combined Authority Treasurer has confirmed that the proposed funding request 
can be allocated from the Transforming Cities Fund. 
 

4.2 Human Resources 
 

The Investment Team and Legal Team will lead the negotiation of the Grant 
Funding Agreement and the Programme Management Office will have responsibility 
for managing the delivery of the Combined Authority’s commitment.   
 

4.3  Physical Assets 
 

No physical assets will be created as a result of this stage of the projects. 
 

4.4 Information Technology 
 

The approval of funding will not give rise to Information Technology issues.  

Page 68



 
 

5. RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 
5.1 If members are minded to approve the recommendations contained in this report, it 

will be acting in accordance with the Single Investment Assurance Framework 
(November 2016).  However, the future management of the proposals will be in 
accordance with the Strategic Investment Assurance Framework, which was 
considered by Members at the Combined Authority meeting on 11 January 2019.  

 
5.2 The principal risks relate to ensuring that funding is spent in line with the annual 

funding allocations.  Delivery capacity in Merseytravel and within the constituent 
Local Authorities is key to achieving this. 

 
 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct implications at this strategic level, but equality and diversity 

considerations will be addressed in detail as part of the business cases that are 
developed for the ensuing measures. 

 
 
7. COMMUNICATION ISSUES 
 
 There are no direct implications issues at this stage, but the marketing and 

promotion of new sustainable transport infrastructure that is delivered using the 
funding will be important, in order to maximise its success. 

 
 
8 CONCLUSION 
 
8.1  The report sets out a request for approval of two development funding bids under 

the Transforming Cities framework, namely: 
 

(a) A Green Commuter Bus Corridor scheme 
(b) A Liverpool City Region Cycle and Walking Network 

 
8.2 Liverpool City Region Mass Transit Options 
 
 The report seeks endorsement of the conclusion of the review of the Liverpool City 

Region Mass Transit Options proposal that this is not considered an eligible 
submission.  The focus of the TCF commissioning text is on enhancing the capacity 
and effectiveness and quality of the existing rail network, rather than on creating an 
alternative or standalone system.  As such, it does not meet the terms of Theme 1 
of the TCF commission.  

 
8.3 A key concern was that the proposed project could not be delivered within the 

Transforming Cities timescales.    
 
8.4 The report confirms that the Hydrogen Funding application was not progressed 

within the remit of Transforming Cities.  
 

Page 69



8.5 Subject to members’ endorsement of these recommendations, the report seeks 
delegated authority to the Combined Authority’s Head of Paid Service to conclude 
satisfactory terms of the ensuing grant funding agreements.    

 
 

MARK BOUSFIELD 
Director of Commercial Development and Investment 

 
COUNCILLOR LIAM ROBINSON  

Portfolio Holder: Transport and Air Quality  
 
 
 

Contact Officer(s): 
Mark Bousfield, Director of Commercial Development and Investment (0151 330 1101) 
Mick Noone, Director of Integrated Transport (0151 330 1081) 

Page 70



LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY 
 
 
To:   The Metro Mayor and Members of the Combined 

Authority 
  
Meeting:     1 February 2019  
 
Authorities Affected:   All  
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL ITEM: No 
 
 

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDER APPOINTMENT  
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to recommend an appointment to the Liverpool City 
Region Combined Authority.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority are recommended to approve the 
appointment of Councillor Kate Groucutt (St Helens MBC) as Deputy Portfolio 
Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, Digital and Innovation.  
 

 
3. DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDER   
 
3.1 The position of Deputy Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, 

Digital and Innovation has been vacant following the resignation of Councillor G 
Neal, St Helens MBC. 

 
3.2 It is proposed that Councillor Kate Groucutt, St Helens MBC, be nominated to fill the 

vacancy of the Deputy Portfolio Holder: Inclusive Growth, Economic Development, 
Digital and Innovation with immediate effect.  

 
3.3 Deputy Portfolio Holders were appointed at the LCR Combined Authority Annual 

Meeting on 31 May 2018. Their role is to support the Portfolio Holders in the 
delivery of their policy objectives. The Deputy Portfolio Holders do not have voting 
rights. 

  

Page 71

Agenda Item 6



 
 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 This report has recommended an appointment to a Liverpool City Region Combined 

Authority Committee. 
 

JILL COULE 
Monitoring Officer  

 
 
Contact Officer: - 
Trudy Bedford, Committee Services Manager (0151) 330 1330 

Page 72



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

 
Transport Committee 

 
10 January 2019 

 
 
Present: Councillor L Robinson, Chair 

Councillor G Friel, Deputy Chair 
 

 Councillors A Carr, J Dodd, S Foulkes, P Hayes, 
H Howard, D Johnson, A Lavelle, P McKinley, 
M O'Mara OBE, G Pearl, G Philbin, J Stockton, 
S Murphy, C Rowe, H Thompson, J Williams and 
F Wynn  
 

  

   
 

74. Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dennis Baum, Jimmy 
Jackson, Keith Roberts and Nathalie Nicholas. 
 
 

75. Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Steve Foulkes declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 3 – 
Minutes of the last meeting by virtue of being one of the petitioners. 
 
 

76. Minutes of the Last Meeting  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Transport Committee 
held on 13 December 2018, be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

77. Developing a Mayoral Transport Plan  
 
The Committee considered a report from Huw Jenkins in relation to seeking 
the endorsement of the Transport Committee for the approach set out for the 
development of a clear, concise and updated transport policy statement in 
the form of a non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan. 
 
Members enquired about the detail of the Mayoral Transport Plan and the 
lack of details about the Local Industrial Strategy. 
 
Huw Jenkins informed the Committee that the details would be submitted to 
the meeting being held in April 2019 subject to the local elections and 
Purdah. 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

Councillor Susan Murphy requested that recommendation 2.1(c) in the report 
be amended to include that the Chair of the Transport Committee provided 
regular updates to the Transport Committee.  
 
The Committee agreed with the amendment to recommendation 2.1(c) in the 
report. 
 
The Chair commented that it was a step in the right direction to develop the 
Mayoral Transport Plan which was similar to London and that the progress 
was being done in a practical way. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee:  
 

a) endorses the approach set out in the report for the development of a 
non-statutory Mayoral Transport Plan to clearly articulate the City 
Region’s vision and plans for transport; 
 

b) endorses the proposed timescales for its development with a view to 
the Transport Committee considering the draft document on 4 April 
2019 ahead of its proposed adoption by the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority on 12 April 2019 subject to the local elections and 
Purdah; and 
 

c) notes that the Chair of the Transport Committee and Metro Mayor 
would receive regular briefings on the development and contents of 
the Mayoral Transport Plan and that the Chair of the Transport 
Committee would provide regular updates to the Transport Committee. 
 
 

78. Merseyside Road Safety Partnership and Liverpool City Region Road 
Safety Strategy 2017-20  
 
The Committee considered a report from Sean Traynor (Head of Highways 
and Transportation, Knowsley MBC) and Rebecca Power (Merseyside 
Police) relating to an update to members on the progress made by the 
Merseyside Road Safety Partnership pursuant to casualty reduction in 
accordance with the vision set out in the Liverpool City Region Road Safety 
Strategy 2017-2020. 
 
Members enquired about the smart pedestrian crossing designs and being 
able to see the “crossing lights” while crossing and the speed of the light 
change. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that new traffic sign regulations were 
introduced in 2016 and there is no obligation to do things in a particular way. 
However, gold standard crossings are being adopted across the region. 
 
Councillor John Stockton enquired about why Halton BC was being excluded 
from Road Safety Partnership meetings? 
 

Page 74



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

Sean Traynor informed the Committee that it was previously based upon the 
financial contributions between Cheshire and Merseyside, however, the 
issues have since been resolved and Halton BC are now invited to attend the 
Road Safety Partnership meetings. 
 
Members enquired about reporting structures for cyclists relating to potholes 
on the roads and taxi drivers being in the media for drug use and suggested 
that the drug use could also be medication being used to stay awake and 
work longer hours. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that the new website was recently 
launched and could facilitate any reports relating to near misses and potholes 
for both drivers and cyclists. He also stated that in relation to the taxi drivers, 
that although the figures are shocking relating to drug use, it is not prescribed 
medication. Collisions involving taxis have found that drivers were resorting 
to recreational drug use to extend working days and hours. He informed the 
Committee that initiatives were being looked at with licensing authorities and 
the police to do testing when issuing and renewing licences. 
 
Members enquired if there was any information available about partnership 
working with schools and Local Authorities relating to road safety etc. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that a strategy had been developed at 
Knowsley MBC and this would be shared with the Committee in due course. 
 
Members commented about the national legislation relating to road safety 
and that there had been major breakthroughs to have legislation and 
enforcement relating to mobiles phones, seatbelts and drink-driving, 
however, more needed to be done to lobby the Government about helmets 
for cyclists and “close passing” when cycling. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that the Road Safety Partnership was 
looking at endorsing a strategy and supporting national initiatives related to 
helmets and “close passing”. 
 
The Chair stated that some examples should be taken from specific US 
States that had “close passing” and wearing of helmet laws and that some 
consideration should be given to creating local by-laws and lobbying 
Government for national legislation. He also commented that in relation to 
taxi drivers and drug use that there is a small minority doing this illegal 
practice and that a stronger approach was needed to randomly test bus, train 
and taxi drivers. 
 
Sean Traynor informed the Committee that steps were being explored with 
local licensing authorities, but it needed to be a more City Region approach.  
 
The Chair thanked Sean Traynor and Rebecca Power for the detailed report 
and for their attendance. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee notes the contents of the report 
and the Action Plan Updates in Appendix 1. 

Page 75



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

79. Liverpool City Region Smart Ticketing Programme Update  
 
The Committee considered a report from Paul Hart that provided an update 
to members on the current development of the Liverpool City Region Smart 
Ticketing Platform including recent progress and future developments. 
 
Members commented about the Apprentice Ticket and the efforts of the 
Metro Mayor to reduce the barriers for young people to travel and work in the 
City Region and enquired if there were any data about the “take up” and how 
was it being advertised and whether consideration was being given to pre-
loaded Walrus cards to make it easier for customers to travel across multi-
modes. 
 
Paul Hart informed the Committee that the “take up” had been slow to date 
mainly due to the launch being in the middle of the apprentice year. However, 
once the system is embedded, then there will be a bit more opportunity to 
advertise and would provide the Committee with an update at a future 
meeting. He also stated that various opportunities were being looked at to 
promote travel across the City Region and make it easier for customers to 
move across the region. Discussions were being held with organisations 
about costs and impact. 
 
Councillor Patrick McKinley commented that in order for Apprenticeships to 
be aware of the reduction in travel costs and the schemes available for travel 
across the City Region it would be best to include the information in the 
apprentice’s induction programme and to inform all providers of the schemes 
and reduced travel costs. 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee noted the contents of the report. 
 
 

80. Williams Rail Review  
 
The Committee considered a report from Tom Carbery (Rail Development 
Advisor) that described the “Williams Rail Review” and advised that proposed 
responses to it were being collated and also sought delegated authority to 
approve the final response to the “Call for Evidence” on behalf of the 
Combined Authority. 
 
The Chair commented that the timescales for the review were unreasonable 
and was proving difficult for the officers to collate the evidence and respond 
by 18th January 2019, but it seemed as though the Government had their 
minds made up regarding the rail review. 
 
Members commented that it is an amazing vision for a world class railway, 
but the Government have appointed a British Airways former Chair who 
knows nothing about the railway. Members thanked the Officers for bringing it 
to the attention of the Committee, despite the views of the Government and 
despite Northern Rail hiking the prices up despite the poor performance. 
 

Page 76



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

The following amendment was circulated to the Committee and proposed by 
Councillor Gordon Friel and seconded by Councillor Liam Robinson, to insert 
at the end of recommendations (a) and (b): - 
 

c) Recognise that public ownership and operation is a model shown to 
work should be implemented across the UK Rail Network. 
 

d) That the ROSCO (Rolling Stock Leasing Company) model is 
significantly more costly and a publicly owned system, similar to the 
publicly owned model being used to procure the new Merseyrail 
Rolling Stock, should be introduced across the UK Rail Network. 

 
In accordance to Standing Order 14.4, Councillor Susan Murphy proposed a 
recorded vote, seconded by Councillor Gordon Friel. 
 
Councillor Christopher Rowe commented that the amendment was 
interesting, but lacked detail and understanding of the financial issues being 
discussed and that he did not have enough information to make an informed 
decision and to vote for the proposed amendment. 
 
Members commented that they were happy to support the proposed 
amendment and that information and feedback from local residents was 
enough to make an informed decision and support the amendment. 
 
A vote was taken on the Amendment, when there appeared: - 
 
FOR THE AMENDMENT AGAINST THE 

AMENDMENT 
ABSTENTIONS 

Councillor Liam Robinson Councillor Paul Hayes Councillor John Dodd 
Councillor Gordon Friel  Councillor Geoff Pearl 
Councillor Anthony Carr  Councillor Christopher 

Rowe 
Councillor Steve Foulkes  Councillor Frances Wynn 
Councillor Harry Howard   

Councillor Dot Johnson   

Councillor Anthony Lavelle   

Councillor Patrick McKinley   

Councillor Margi O’Mara 
OBE 

  

Councillor Ged Philbin   

Councillor John Stockton   

Councillor Susan Murphy   

Councillor Helen Thompson   

Councillor Jerry Williams   

 

For the Amendment – 14 

Against the Amendment – 1 

  

Page 77



Transport Committee 
 
 
 

Abstentions - 4 

The Amendment was approved. 

A vote was then taken on the following Substantive recommendation and it 
was approved by a majority: - 
 
RESOLVED that the Transport Committee: 
 

a) notes the contents of the report;  
 

b) delegate authority to submit the final City Region consultation 
response to the Director of Integrated Transport and the Director of 
Policy and Strategic Commissioning, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of the Transport Committee; 
 

c) recognise that public ownership and operation is a model shown to 
work should be implemented across the UK Rail Network; and 
 

d) notes that the ROSCO (Rolling Stock Leasing Company) model is 
significantly more costly and a publicly owned system, similar to the 
publicly owned model being used to procure the new Merseyrail 
Rolling Stock, should be introduced across the UK Rail Network. 

 
The Chair informed the Committee that once the full response was collated 
and agreed by the Chair and Vice Chair that it would be circulated to the 
Committee. 
 
 

81. Public Question Time  
 
The Committee received two public questions from Mr Andrew Wennell who 
was in attendance and was provided an opportunity to ask his questions to 
the Committee as follows: - 
 
Question 1 
Most people start their journey by bus but are unable to purchase Saveaways 
on the bus or online at home. So need to go to a local shop or the train 
station which could also require a bus journey. Is this going to be possible to 
make it easier for the public? 
 
The Chair thanked Me Wennell for submitting his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
Question 2 
What is going to be the end result of this? It has been going on for months. 
Always on a Saturday, well if they want to cause maximum disruption do it 
during the week. What’s the news in relation to this? 
 

Page 78



 
Transport Committee 

 
 

The Chair thanked Me Wennell for submitting his question and for attending 
the meeting and informed him that a formal response would be provided 
within 10 working days. 
 
 

82. Petitions and Statements  
 
No petitions or statements were submitted for this meeting. 
 
 

83. Any Other Urgent Business Approved by the Chair  
 
There was no other urgent business. 
 

 
 
 
 

______________________ 
                                                                                CHAIR 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the LCR Combined Authority held on 11 January 2019
	4 Mayoral Combined Authority Budget Setting Report 2019/20
	5 Transforming Cities Fund: Approval to release up to £500,000 of Development Funding
	6 Deputy Portfolio Holder Appointment
	9 Minutes of the Transport Committee held on 10 January 2019
	Minutes


